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Life is a journey that
requires careful planning.
AN EEIRNAL
RIZESER - FERZ -

In this report, we describe
IEC’s performance in 2015-16
and provide pointers for a
fulfilling financial journey
throughout life. Bon voyage!
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About the Investor Education Centre REEZEHBEHROEN
Established in 2012 and supported by the Education BEERBRON2012F/K T - 21EF
Bureau and all four financial regulators, the Investor BEETRNSHEMABNEINES
Education Centre (IEC) is an organisation dedicated to B TERERRE RS MBS

improving financial literacy in Hong Kong. In April 2016,

the IEC launched an independent and impartial financial i o N2016%F4 7 - REEHB R OHH

education platform, The Chin Family, with free BYRSFAENSRMEMAFFA [ER
information, resources and programmes to help people BE| 2EBRUEENER HEERK
in Hong Kong plan and manage their finances. The IEC 52 BB BT RSN EEE AT -
is also the secretariat for the Hong Kong Strategy for BEEHBETNOERER 552 RIEE
Financial Literacy, which aims to harness the efforts of G &R | NEENRE  SHERDERT

the various sectors by promoting collaboration and setting
common goals that address the financial education needs
of our society.
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l Message from the Chairman

FREMEE

Year 2015-16 was a milestone year for the Investor
Education Centre (IEC) in our mission to advance
financial literacy. We launched a brand-new financial
education platform, introduced new education
programmes with content centred around key life
events for various segments of the population, and
rolled out the Hong Kong Strateqgy for Financial Literacy
(HKSFL) — an important cross-sectoral collaboration
initiative to address financial education needs in the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

A new financial education platform
for the community

The Chin Family is an independent and impartial
financial education platform which was created to
encourage financial learning and engage the
community. The Chin Family characters were introduced
in April 2016 together with a new look and feel for our
website and social media channels.

Hong Kong'’s first
financial literacy strategy

One of the highlights of 2015 was the inauguration of
the HKSFL in November. This first-of-its-kind strategy
in Hong Kong sets out a clear direction for increasing
financial literacy within a framework of actions to be
taken across the government, finance, education and
community sectors.

The HKSFL has three strategic focuses: to raise
awareness of the benefits of financial education, to
extend opportunities for learning, and to enhance
coordination and collaboration among stakeholders.

| am delighted that the IEC will act as the secretariat
of the HKSFL to help achieve its goals along with our
partners, ambassadors and supporting organisations.

New initiatives for advancing
financial education

Our efforts to promote financial education during the
year included the Figure out your Finances campaign,
which introduced the public to a suite of interactive
tools, and a series of video programmes, Money Smart,
which provided practical tips on various aspects of
money management applicable to people in different
life stages in response to market changes. In addition,

Investor Education Centre Annual Report 2015-16

we collaborated with the Housing Authority to alert
owners of government subsidised housing units to
borrowing traps.

To keep the public abreast of the latest changes in the
Mainland market, we published information on the
Mutual Recognition of Funds between mainland China
and Hong Kong and developed a video series about
Mainland investments on our website. In the year
ahead, the rise in retail interest rates, possible launch of
the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect programme,
and the increasing debt burden on Hong Kong
households are some of the reasons why demand for
financial education is likely to increase considerably.

Beyond these, we continued to reach out to members
of the community by scaling up our GET $ET GO!
money management workshops for students and the
Police Ambassador programme for retirees, as well as
piloting a finance workshop for parents and a workplace
programme for organisations to help improve financial
wellbeing among different segments of the population.

During the year, we also carried out a comprehensive
review of financial education initiatives and resources in
Hong Kong. In tandem with this review, we set up an
academic grant to encourage new high-quality research
in financial literacy and promoted robust partnerships
between financial education practitioners and academics.

| would like to sincerely thank all of our stakeholders,
including members of our Executive Committee, the
Advisory Committee and Advisory Groups, as well as
the Government, financial regulators and all friends
of IEC, for their invaluable support in helping IEC to
advance financial education in Hong Kong. Finally,

| would like to acknowledge the IEC team for their
excellent work and dedication over the past year.

By continuing our close collaboration with stakeholders,
| am confident we can work together to bring financial
education to the community to progress and enhance
financial literacy in Hong Kong.

-3 oo

Professor Cheng Kwok Hon, Leonard .—J

Chairman

June 2016




REEHFPOUOURABTBAZNSRIEY ANEBMED D

a0 M2015-16FERFVBTEMR LR EEER
B —F - APEL —EHFNEREMHE FEMNEE
BEE UMHERHMBAL AR - RERBALE
EERNEBRR - BF  HAFET [BESRENA
WAEE KRR | ([EBERE]) - ER—BEEMNBERAIF
2 EERFERUEBRLARUSHENRENTE -

PHBEFE BNALE

[BRBEIR—EBYEFFLAENERMENREFE
USEBTREZENZESHEER - [BRBEEIRER
2016 F4 A ERA—FMNMIEM LR EREARRE ©

&6 8 (85 BhIE B 2R Be 77 SRS

[EBRE]REFIAKL - R2015FMEHER 22—
TREBENDRERE  HEA QRSB HHM
BENFT AR 0) - ERBA - A - HERMEER
BT EIRMHAELR -

[EBRE | RE-ERKEY  EESREMRENGT
B BRNBBERE  URINREFDEZBNBRAMEHE o
REEHEPUER [BBERR | WRER - HEEEMH
BEBH  RERIEHEBEFERER  RELRR

R -
M58 & b 3% B 0B o R A
REEHETORESHDHRE  TEGS > ERRY

SREBER  HTEEEE BN AXMRET I EBHE
RREA-—EEHEM TR ; #HH DEREN | EREEN

-~

RHEEAREMNERZER  EPERTRAAERRNTER
TSN URETEEEZESEF  RERF
BOEEEMNEE R AXNEERK -

RTBARBUPEATENRABE  BARKRTHE
BERERNENEE2BESERLTHNEN  XRIET
—RIERAMRENEFEE - LHERNFORUEETR
BE - AR—F  #ZTEMNRELET  [FRBE|REBE
B UREBREEKEEAZNENERRLT - AR
HEREMHBENTRR TS AIREM -

BTN EER - RASEAERERED - BEEETE
TR - A1 B S BB A+ OB RRARR
Heh 5B BHR I [GET SET GO B8 THe%5 ;
REIATRIN [ ELRUHREFIAED | BREM
BRORIEY T | AR H BRETIROMS 2N
HEHE o

BE—F  REEHEPOHRBBNSRHEMHEZEHE
BERETTR2EM o HILER - BT RS NER
BMRYL T —RBMAREE - UHBSEEN
TRENHENE  LRESHEBNHBERARXENEE
ZEEIBRENEFRR -

ROBHIBENENR NI - BHREEHB L
MNEEBNEMENHE HHEEERESEE - HHAZ
SEMHEADE - URBT - SREERBANARDOHN
BEREY - BRE  RERHREBZHBFOLEBREFH
IBEAY A E AR IR o

BREREEZENERBRSHE  KAXBUBD - B8
HEHEZRETSREVHE - SEELARNEREN
HBABE N E AR -

iﬁ‘-} % 0%

&
HREEBUR

201656 A

REEHEF02015-16 FH



Message from the General Manager

MR IR EE

It has been a wonderful year to be associated with the
IEC. The progress and achievements listed throughout
this report are many and varied. I’'m pleased to report
that as IEC’s profile and reputation grows, one other
key measure has also markedly increased — and that
is the number and quality of people who are keen to
work here!

Timelines to achieve key strategic goals such as the
Hong Kong Financial Competency Framework, Hong
Kong Strategy for Financial Literacy (HKSFL) and The
Chin Family were all aggressive. Launching all three
initiatives during the 2015-16 year was necessary to
allow other key future initiatives to occur.

The HKSFL has opened up several new stakeholder
conversations, which in turn have facilitated efficient
and better quality solutions to meet the financial
education needs of vulnerable groups especially.

Senior representatives from the government, finance,
education and community sectors continue to display
strong interest in seeing the IEC succeed.

There are several challenges ahead but one which
must take prominence is the potential rebalancing
between what IEC creates to satisfy the needs of

an independent learner, who is comfortable enough
to gather knowledge and make use of interactive tools
on a website, and a dependent learner who may
require a more structured programme delivered in a
face-to-face format.

Our aim is to attract an increasing number of new
people to use IEC’s resources under The Chin Family
platform. New users will be able to self-select their
preferred method of engagement with the IEC via
The Chin Family.
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Every resource that the IEC creates will continue to
be accessible to all members of the public.

Thank you to all the IEC staff and stakeholders who
have contributed to making 2015-16 a year of many
achievements.

Finally, let me thank the IEC Executive Committee,
with special thanks to the three new members who
have joined in the last 12 months. Ms Lisa Lau,

Mr Li Shu Pui and Mr Joe Ng are already contributing
new ideas to assist the IEC to enhance the financial
literacy of the people of Hong Kong.

obore

David Kneebone
General Manager

June 2016
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About the [EC
BREEYHBERLEN

Financial literacy is not only critical for individuals to
succeed in life but for society at large, as high levels
of financial literacy can contribute to the overall

development and stability of Hong Kong as an
international financial centre. /

& BOIE B RN BE ) MEEHE A — R R R & B 5
1B - BIEBHENERENTE - /KPS EIEM
HEBMEE T - RARE B A ERBER SR P OAMAL -
WS ERFMA > FEERR

- o

With the increasingly complex financial products and services Boms tNEMERNREDBEM 2
available today, the need for financial education has never been HERMBEMHBENERT L UTEEBY] -
greater. This is where the IEC comes in. EFEREEHBEROLHNRIBEE -

The IEC was established in November 2012 as an organisation BREEHBERLN2012FE11 BRI » ERE
dedicated to fulfilling the financial education needs of Hong Kong F A RS BIB B A A GE D B S S A
people and improving their financial literacy. Following a public . L ENHEETRYSRIENKENESR o
consultation in February 2010 and the subsequent amendment of .

BEEBEIITHREBFN2010F28 TR
BER(ESRBERG) NHBHTE  HER
2012F5R1ERT R BRG] - TR HRIPE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance in May 2012, the HKSAR
Government broadened the mandate of the Securities and Futures
Commission (SFC) to conduct education covering all aspects of

money management and various kinds of financial products and %ﬁ%gﬁé;ﬁ% (HEE) Hﬁ%gﬁﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁi
services. Under this mandate, the IEC was set up to take the lead B RESHHENEMAR  URAEEH
and improve financial literacy in Hong Kong. EmERE - REBSEEMRINREERS

Rt BRIESIEASR  URAFTBARER
ERANENRENRTE -
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Our

mission
HBEED

We are a public organisation with the

mission of improving financial literacy in
Hong Kong. Established as a subsidiary of

the SFC, the IEC is supported by Hong Kong's
four financial regulators and the Education Bureau. All

funding is provided by the SFC, with no extra charges or
levies on the financial services industry or investors.

REEHBHDORUEABTBLRNEREN NBNED D
EMEERE  TREEESNHERE  LREERR

MESHMEERBERE - PUOMEKERRAEES B4
M &R AR IR IREE WIBEIMHEREH -

The goal of our work is to make the

process of becoming financially literate
fun, easy to understand and accessible. We provide
people in Hong Kong with comprehensive, credible and

Our
partners

BEBH

impartial financial information, tools and education

resources, organise free public seminars, and address
the specific financial education needs of our target
audiences. Additionally, we equip parents, social
workers and teachers with the tools, services and

support they need for effective financial education.

We work in partnership with
government agencies and the
finance, education and community
sectors to give the general public
the knowledge and tools they need
to make informed and sound
financial decisions.

REEHBHOUNTEEERBHERNRE  FEER
Bl RAZHURFEEANTE  HBEBHTRERE
BRENZE - BMBHARTRRHEEZE - IEZRFFR
ENESRIENEN - TARBEER  ERRBELTAE
B S BEEZRTRNEREGHEFTEM I EHEE
B e A MABNARE - H TREBMEHRAFTRN
TR RBAXE  BHtMESRERSRIZTAE
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About the IEC
REZEHBEHRLEN

T NGRE

the Chin family
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Meet The Chin Family

During the year we rolled out a new financial education platform —
The Chin Family — designed to make financial learning simple and
enjoyable for the people of Hong Kong.

Through The Chin Family characters, we hope to increase public
awareness and involvement in financial literacy by appealing to
their emotional and practical needs in personal finance.

As an independent, impartial and trusted guide to managing money,
The Chin Family offers free information, resources and programmes
to help people in Hong Kong plan and manage their finances.

n Investor Education Centre Annual Report 2015-16
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Engaging the public NS

4‘ On 11 April 2016, we officially introduced The Chin Family to 2016FE4 8118 » BRIE/TREIZE » GEKX
the Hong Kong public at a launch ceremony. Live dance TRNETEEE | [$86E | NFE
performances, The Chin Family mascots and the debut of our FERSEREBERSE TEEFEEE
theme song made this a highly engaging and memorable event. TEMT NSRS EERE - A (828R
In addition, we organised a series of public activities and B NSRS AN EEAS B -

appearances by The Chin Family mascots in order to introduce

BiRF R IR -
them to the community. L3R F R PR

< o83 35 1 ] L [ 45 A3 |
The campaign was supported by a variety of media, including §1F5Efﬂ;r?;%j?§§ rﬁ”‘%—‘/ﬁgi @f
TV commercials, a music video of the theme song, print BRES TEHEFRYS - PERES 56

advertisements, collateral materials, a new website and social T4 ~ X4 - LUK Facebook H YouTube
media channels such as Facebook and YouTube. ZHER -

(From left to right) Mr Carlson Tong,
Chairman of the Securities and
Futures Commission, Mr Andrew
Wong, Permanent Secretary for
Financial Services and the Treasury
(Financial Services), Professor
Leonard Cheng, IEC Chairman and
Mr David Kneebone, IEC General
Manager, officiated at the launch
ceremony of The Chin Family.
(REER) BSRPEEREREES
TEERMALE  BRBBEREBKRE
ERER (MESK) EFXEE - RE
EHEROERHEZRERIREEN
BHOAKESEELE  —FEES
BMIBHHETA [BXEE]INWKEE -

. o
Mr Carlson Tong and Ms Kandy Wong shared money management tips and experiences.
BRREERELRNE (HER) 2R OEREH -

waagasn2015-16 5% CHIIEGE



I About the IEC
BREEHAEPRLEN

m Investor Education Centre Annual Report 2015-16

We introduced a new financial consumer-
friendly education platform The Chin
Family through TV, outdoor advertising
and social media, coupled with a theme
song and mascot appearances to raise
public interest and engagement in
financial learning.

EMRER - PHAESRUERIEREREEH
SRIBHHAETABRAE] LEB
TEMRZHEBIEEINRERSRLR
RE - BAMMAES2BEE0EEB R EEME -




A new education platform

To make financial learning more fun and easy, we developed

The Chin Family, a distinctive brand mark to be used in every
communication. We also developed core messages to be
communicated through the seven members of The Chin Family:
Mr and Mrs Chin, their son and daughter Chin Junior and Princess
Chin, Grandpa, Grandma, and their pet cat Chin Chin. Each
character has his or her own unique personality and plays a
different role in communicating financial topics tailored to specific
target groups within the community.

In addition to the various media channels we are using to

promote these characters, we re-designed our website featuring
The Chin Family and enhanced the user experience with improved
navigation so that visitors can more easily access financial
information in an interactive way. Other educational resources such
as booklets and interactive tools will also feature The Chin Family
characters.

For the remainder of 2016 and beyond, we will organise thematic
education campaigns using The Chin Family, including a mobile
education truck and social media campaigns to invite sharing by
influencers and the general public, and additional content such as
real-life video documentaries, competitions and games. All of this
is part of our mission to make financial learning more accessible,
straightforward and enjoyable for everyone.
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l Executive Committee
EREEE

To oversee the work of the |IEC, an independent Executive Committee
has been set up comprising the Chairman, who is a non-executive
director of the SFC, and representatives of the four financial regulators —
the SFC, the Hong Kong Monetary Authority, the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Authority and the Office of the Commissioner of
Insurance. It also includes representatives of the financial industry and
the Education Bureau as well as the General Manager of the IEC. The
Committee meets every three months to provide strategic oversight and
advice to the IEC and approve its policies and decisions.

REEHEDTONIIFR—EBIERZERAEER EAR88KE
BiE—2EE (EESFNTES) NESREERE (DHERES
EATHMEER  AHMELAELFITERMMRBERIRER) WK - &FX
NEBRIIREK  URREEHEFRONEALE - BREEg8=-EAAHRE
—R > RARLORERBEEEMER  WHELEBRMARE

Professor Cheng is Chairman of the Investor Education
Centre, President of Lingnan University, a Non-Executive
Director of the Securities and Futures Commission, and a
member of Hong Kong's Competition Commission,
Economic Development Commission, and Independent
Commission on Remuneration for Members of the
Executive Council and the Legislature, and Officials under
the Political Appointment System of the HKSAR.

Prior to joining Lingnan University, Professor Cheng
was Dean of the School of Business and
Management of the Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology from 2009 to 2013. He
has published papers in many leading academic
journals in economics, and served as an

® Professor CHENG
Kwok Hon, Leonard

Ol associate editor of the Journal of International
P R 2 Economics and Pacific Economic Review.

£

BHBABREELRAROLERE - BEREAER
R UTEAKEEIERSFSRBEEKEREZESHE
PTES  URBBEITHE [HREHEEE
g [RERRZES N[ BBFTHETR
SERE  TESEERBAZIFEEEHEE Y
ZBg]ZE8 -

From 19 October 2012
Current appointment expires
on 31 December 2016

H2012F 108 19H
B AEHE2016% T2 AT BHIEN2009F201 3 MA T BRI AS
1231 A% THEBRRERE - MERSHE GHEERMHHT

BRWY 0 WEEE (EBRLEER) (Journal of
International Economics) K { KX E&EETm)
(Pacific Economic Review) B4R o

N
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f:NEEBONE,

David Phillip
General Manager

FEE

g

From 23 June 2014
Current appointment
expires on 18 October 2018

H2014F6H23H
BRI Z20184F 105 18H &

Mr Kneebone is General Manager and an Executive
Committee member of the Investor Education Centre.
Previously, he had worked for eight years at the
Commission for Financial Capability (CFC) in New
Zealand and was its Executive Director from 2010 to 2014.

In the past decade Mr Kneebone has managed a variety
of successful financial education programmes in
communities, workplaces, schools, tertiary institutions and
online. His background in marketing, advertising,
telecommunications and banking has been key in
contributing to the success of programmes designed to
help the public manage their money.

Mr Kneebone shares his experiences and insights on
financial education and retirement income. He is a regular
conference speaker and member of various OECD and
IOSCO committees focused on developing financial
literacy initiatives and producing quality research. In 2015,
he became an ambassador of the Hong Kong Strategy for
Financial Literacy.

TREAREEHFTIVEKEREREESHRE - EE
FEmeRAEIEENZEE (Commission for Financial
Capability, CFC) {EB84 » I7E20104 Z201 43R H1E
ITEE-H -

BETFZEEELE  BE - NE - KERRRALE
BZIEeHENHETE > BSGREAE - thiETISERE
Ef - SHRRTEEHENEESER  AEDSRENHRA
TEEERER o

FREBBHREHEVHBNRRKBASES ZERNE
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CHAN Sun Hung

Office of the Commissioner
of Insurance

PRIFIE
{RERZEESTR R

From 19 October 2012
Current appointment expires
on 18 October 2018

H2012F 105194 E
EAIFRIZ20184F 105 18H /&

Mr Chan has joined the Office of the Commissioner of
Insurance (OCI) for over 20 years and is now Acting
Assistant Commissioner of Insurance of the Policy and
Development Division. Mr Chan has been involved in the
supervision of Hong Kong’s insurance companies, both
life and non-life, in different positions at OCI. The scope
of his experience spans all aspects of insurance
regulation, including prudential supervision of insurers,
formulation and promulgation of regulatory policies on
the insurance industry, as well as liaison with
international and Mainland regulatory authorities.

BREAEMARIREEIE TFBB20F - RAZEBRER
BRIMBEBBRMELIEES - RELEZEZETE
NEALTHE —HEEEEEFTBENRELRE - BESEK
ERREAR - NEELCRRERREENSEHE -
BREFHEERBAR - TRRATHRRENRER
R~ MBEER KRB AEEHE -
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I»  Executive Committee
EREES

CHAN Tze Ching,
Ignatius
Industry representative

BRF X
RRAX

From 19 October 2012
Current appointment
expires on 18 October 2018

H2012%F 105196
ERIEEI 22018105 18 A/

CHENG Yan Chee
Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes
Authority

R
BEMARETEER

From 9 May 2013
Current appointment
expires on 18 October 2018

20134559 H
BEifFEIZ20184105 18 H/Z M

A veteran banker, Mr Chan started his career with
Citibank in Hong Kong in 1980. Before his retirement from
Citibank in 2007, he had held various senior management
positions in Asia Pacific, including Country Officer for
Hong Kong, Country Officer for Taiwan and Head of
Corporate and Investment Banking for Greater China.

Mr Chan is currently Senior Advisor to The Bank of East
Asia Limited and CVC Capital Partners. He is also actively
involved in community and public service, serving as a
member of the Hong Kong Tourism Board, the Financial
Reporting Council, the Standing Commission on Civil
Service Salaries and Conditions of Service, Hong Kong
Red Cross Council and the Community Chest of Hong
Kong and as Chairman of the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and Hong Kong Strategy for Financial Literacy
Steering Committee. Mr Chan also sits on the Boards of
several listed companies including the Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited.

Mot BERBITR - R1980EMATEHIRIT « BH
TABSEHERAEN  QEELETE - ALEEH -

RPEBEERAEREERRERTEBRE - R2007F
BIK o

PROCEFR R RDIRITSARER KX CVC Capital Partners
SREE > TEEBSHEAR  BIEEEBREZRERK
E - UBERBRE AEEFERREKHEKZES
RE (AKEFFS) BBLATF2ESERE FBL
HEEERESE EEEIAERESREESHETA
BNENERIEEZESEE -REETAZELTAA
EEAEEARSREEMBRAT -
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Mr Cheng joined the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Authority (MPFA) in April 2013 as Chief
Corporate Affairs Officer and Executive Director. He
oversees the corporate affairs and development
functions of the MPFA, covering the work of the
Corporate Services, Information Technology and
External Affairs Divisions as well as the Liaison Unit.

Mr Cheng was a member of the Administrative Service
of the Hong Kong Government from 1986 to 2013,
serving as Administrative Officer up to Deputy Secretary
in various government bureaux and departments
responsible for financial services, education, information
technology services and welfare.

EEAER2013F48 MARBM LB BAEER (B
B)  HARBERRERIITES  EEEERSROK
BEBREBEREBEE  EBENIPIEETHRS - EfMBHT
B BHBHIHURBER -

BEEB1986F MABTBBABBHEA  EZEBMFRE
BREBFEBZE2013F - HEBBEEZAIMER 88
RETRBENSEE  BREMESEE  #HF - EMBER
BRAEEEF -



LAU Man Man, Lisa
Industry representative

XX
ERNAE

From 19 October 2015
Appointment expires on
18 October 2018

H2015F10519H
ERIFR 220184105 18H [

LI Shu Pui

Hong Kong
Monetary Authority

TR
EEETMEER

From 26 February 2016
Current appointment
expires on 18 October 2018
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BEiEEIZ20184105 18 H/Z %

Ms Lau is the Creative Director of GAL Graphics
Consultants Limited. She is an expert in design branding
and publicity and has served on various government
councils and advisory committees. In her past role as
Chair of the Hong Kong Council on Smoking and Health
(COSH), she was involved in raising awareness of the
harm associated with second-hand smoke through social
media, putting forward an amendment to the Smoking
(Public Health) Ordinance and raising tobacco taxes.

Ms Lau currently serves as Chair of the Sir David Trench
Fund Committee and as a member of the Sports
Commission, Action Committee Against Narcotics and
Independent Police Complaints Council. She was
appointed a Justice of the Peace (non-official) in 2006
and awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in 2013 by the
Government of the HKSAR.

2%+ 2 GAL Graphics Consultants Limited B &I/E42
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Mr Li is currently the Executive Director (Financial
Infrastructure) Designate of the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority. His major responsibilities include development
and promotion of the soft and hard financial infrastructure
in Hong Kong (including payment and settlement systems,
deposit protection scheme, the fintech facilitation office,
investor and consumer education, enhanced competency
framework for banking practitioners, and currency and note
printing) and coordination with overseas central banks and
service providers to facilitate cross-border cooperation in
financial infrastructure development.

Mr Li is a qualified Chartered Accountant (FCA) of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales,
a qualified Chartered Information System Engineer
(CENQ), a certified Information Systems Auditor (CISA)
and a member of the British Computer Society (MBCS).
He has also obtained a Masters degree in research

of computer graphics and a Bachelors (1st Class Hons)
degree in Computing Science at the University

of Manchester.
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NG Ka Shing, Joe
Education Bureau

RN
BER

From 22 February 2016
Current appointment expires on
18 October 2018
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Mr Ng is Principal Education Officer (Curriculum
Development) of the Education Bureau in the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region. He joined the
Government in 1996. Over the years, Mr Ng has taken
up different responsibilities in the Education Bureau,

including quality assurance and curriculum development.

He is currently the Chairman of the School Management
Committee of three government schools. He is
committed to bringing about the betterment of school
education in Hong Kong.
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WAN Chi Yiu, Andrew
Securities and Futures
Commission
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EERHEEREREZSS

From 19 October 2012
Current appointment expires on
18 October 2018
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Mr Wan is Chief Financial Officer and Senior Director
(Corporate Affairs) of the Securities and Futures
Commission (SFC), overseeing finance and
administration, corporate planning, human resources,
information technology and external relations. He is
responsible for formulating and executing corporate
strategies to improve the SFC’s regulatory capability
and effectiveness.

In his over 25 years of extensive financial and business
experience, Mr Wan worked with leading professional
firms and served as chief financial officer of listed
companies in Hong Kong and Canada. He holds
Bachelor of Commerce and MBA degrees and is a
member of the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants and a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) in Hong Kong.
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CHU Lap Kiu, Carmen
Hong Kong Monetary Authority
R

EBEREER

From 1 September 2014 to
25 February 2016
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LEE Sha Lun, Sheridan
Education Bureau

FhE
HER

From 17 February 2014 to
18 October 2015
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Ms Chu, Executive Director (Banking Conduct), is
responsible for the supervision and development of
business conduct of authorised institutions, licensing
matters, financial consumer education, and oversight of
financial market infrastructures. She joined the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority (HKMA) in 1994 as a Manager
Trainee and has taken up different responsibilities in the
HKMA, including research and monetary operations. She
was seconded to the World Bank Office in Beijing from
1998 to 1999. Since then she has mainly been involved
in international and regional financial cooperation
initiatives as well as renminbi business development in
Hong Kong. She was appointed Executive Director
(External) in April 2010 and took up her current position
in September 2014.
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Mr Lee was former Principal Education Officer
(Curriculum Development) of the Education Bureau in
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Mr Lee
joined the Government in 1984 as a school inspector.
Over the years, he has been in leading positions
covering English language education, curriculum
development, educational television, quality assurance
as well as the certification and professional development
of teachers and principals.
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The IEC at a glance 2015-16
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Jul-Aug 2015 @ 9
2015%7-88 <
Figure out your Finances Sep 2015
with interactive tools 2015%9H
(B8 B ERE - IEC Research: B HPB ﬂ M A gz
TR Review of Financial Education
- o Initiatives in Hong Kong
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Senior Police Call
Ambassador Programme
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Jul 2015 Nov 2015
201574 2015114
i Investor Education Seminar IEC Research Grant
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Education campaign on financial
intermediaries, mortgage and
borrowing traps
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Sep 2015 Jan-Mar 2016
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Hong Kong Strategy for Teaching your Kids
Financial Literacy about Money programme Apr 2016
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Interview video series on
Mainland investment markets
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Start
financial
education

early in life
BERHE B

81.2:86.9

the average life expectancy ages of
men and women respectively™

BN FHEEPEGIESE
81.25% 2 86.98% *

Hong Kong people are living longer than
ever. That’s why it is so important to start
equipping your children with financial
knowledge from an early age. As
parental influence is one of the key
factors affecting children’s values,
teaching your children about the right
attitudes towards money can help them
plan ahead for their future and enjoy a
lifetime of financial wellbeing.

EBANSHHREER - BMSE b
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RALFIRVAS R 24 - ZTWEE
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* Census and Statistics Department, The Government of
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region 2014

TFRERTHRE BALEE 2014




Targeted Education Programmes

/. sspEmanREtal

The IEC reaches out to the community with tailored education
programmes that address the needs of specific groups. We
collaborate with key stakeholders and community partners to
advance financial education through activities such as
seminars, workshops and train-the-trainer programmes with

the objective of inspiring behaviour change.

XEEHEDOEREELR - FEEREAN
BMHETE - RMUEIBEFNENLREFEIE - BHRTE
FRREBRENRE - GIEE - TRy @

SHERMZEREXR - WkE M PIr R EE -

The right message for the right audience

Among the general public, different people have different financial
needs and styles of learning. We believe that a one-size-fits-all
approach is not effective.

Segmenting the audiences not only enhances the effectiveness of
our education work but also builds up our expertise and
understanding of our various target audiences.

The IEC focuses on the following target segments to maximise
effectiveness and inspire behaviour change:

e Schoolchildren, their parents and teachers
e Tertiary students

¢ Working adults, especially new-to-employment
and pre-retiree employees

* Retirees, in particular the younger elderly

We have tailored our education programmes to address the specific
needs of these audiences. Our programmes may be in the form of
structured programmes that are delivered directly to them, or
indirectly via train-the-trainer series for teachers, lecturers, parents
and social workers.

Investor Education Centre Annual Report 2015-16
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Junior secondary school students participated in a real-life
simulation activity at the GET $ET GO! Money Management
Workshop.

ARBESE[GET $ET GO! | B T/E35 -

Schoolchildren

D 4
We believe that it is critical to start financial
= education as early as possible. By
including financial education in schools,
~" children can begin acquiring the knowledge

and skills they need from an early age and
learn responsible financial behaviour.

Schoolteachers play an influential role in the development of
children’s financial literacy, since they have the opportunity to teach
students about money matters in the classroom and to motivate
them to learn.

To reinforce teachers’ capabilities in teaching financial matters, we
have developed a series of workshops, such as Learning and
Teaching Strategies for the Business, Accounting and Financial
Studies (BAFS) Curriculum Series and Enriching Knowledge for
the BAFS Curriculum Series. In addition, we train teachers on how
to use the BAFS teaching resources, via a Stock Trading Guru
board game and other supporting materials that enable students to
learn financial concepts in a fun and interesting way. Over 60
schools have been trained in these workshops to date.

Additional teacher training and teaching resources will be prepared
in subjects such as Mathematics, General Studies for Primary
Schools, Life and Society, and Liberal Studies.

In the 2014-15 school year, the Education Bureau began providing
additional support to schools with its Career and Life Planning
(CLP) programme, which shares our common objective of
enhancing financial knowledge among students. To support its
implementation in schools, we are working with The Chinese
University of Hong Kong to deliver their CLP project to more than
200 secondary schools (about 40% of all secondary schools in
Hong Kong) and 4,000 teachers over the next five years.

Parents and children swapped roles and shopped together in
the Teaching your Kids about Money Parent-child Programme.
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Targeted Education Programmes
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Our GET $ET GO! Money Management Workshop, developed
together with the Hong Kong Family Welfare Society, is a real-life
simulation activity for junior secondary school students. The
workshop aims to help students develop practical money
management skills and a healthy attitude towards money. To date,
20 workshops have been delivered. The students enjoyed the
learning experience with 84% saying it was fun. To reinforce the
financial concepts of these workshops, we have conducted a
follow-up session for some selected schools.

Since financial education in schools can be reinforced at home,

the IEC encourages parents to take advantage of festive occasions,
such as the handing out of Chinese New Year laisee packets, to
teach their children about money matters. To deliver this message,
we launched an online tool, the Laisee Money Budget Planner, that
encourages parents and their children to put laisee money to good
use and share their good fortune with those in need.

We are also working with parents of junior primary schoolchildren
through our trial Teaching your Kids about Money Parent-child
Programme. The programme consists of two workshops, which give
parents and their children knowledge and skills in the basics of
money management. During the year, we piloted this programme in
five primary schools with simulation activities, a money management
card game and seminar. In addition to the workshops, we have
published a guidebook for parents to teach their children about
money matters in daily life.

Over 90% of the parents agreed that the workshops enhanced their
money management knowledge as well as how to teach their
children about money matters. The programme will be scaled up

for use in other primary schools.

Tertiary students

As young people reach adulthood, they
have far more responsibility over their
finances than ever before. But if they
manage their finances poorly at this stage
of their lives, the effect on their financial
wellbeing can be long-lasting.

With the new four-year undergraduate programmes in tertiary
institutions across Hong Kong, additional time is now available to
introduce financial education to students in the 18-25 year old age
range. The IEC collaborated with three tertiary institutions — the Hong
Kong Institute of Education, the School of Professional Education
and Executive Development of The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University (PolyU SPEED), and the Li Ka Shing Institute of
Professional and Continuing Education of the Open University of
Hong Kong (OUHK LiPACE) - to offer a financial education
programme in their credit-bearing personal finance elective modules.
The programme includes two guest lectures on practical financial life
skills and a budgeting and tracking expenses exercise for students.
Over 41% of the participants received a Certificate of Completion for
meeting the requirements of the programme.

Investor Education Centre Annual Report 2015-16
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In the year ahead, we plan to extend this programme to the Hong Bt BN RERZTEERETBEEHNE
Kong Institute of Vocational Education, HKU SPACE Community Bl BB KB BT R ABEERE o
College (HKU SPACE CC) and Centennial College.

REXRMWAR  BRSBAEBLERRERY
According to our research, the majority of tertiary students consider yeT#EaEEEYALAS - RIFIEBREE
the start of work to be their most important life event. Through the (42 |3 THELTST 2] BAEE SIS HERES -
Workplace Money Workshop Programme, we provide students with BEEAREHETS o f MBS E A5
essential personal financial life skills needed as employees. These w T L im0
skills can also be applied in the workplace, since the principles of giig;%m M BERERS LY

personal finance are similar to those required for managing the
finances of a business. RMEREMABRARHEATRIS (8] BT
We delivered this programme at five tertiary institutions, including iﬁ?f%” ' ??ﬁ’fﬁii’é@%ﬁ% Eﬁ%f@lﬁﬁ?—
Hang Seng Management College, PolyU SPEED, OUHK LiPACE, EXEBRR BRLHAARZTEAERER
HKU SPACE CC and Centennial College. The two-hour workshops ~ 2Ft ~ BB XS EER R AEBEE © B

for final year students included information on personal financial life BN TAES B B8 E 4 B AR RS AR
skills for entering the workforce as well as career and salary trends. BRI - FEBERSEES - RPITLIASE
Additionally, we published a workplace money guide for students, BIWET —ANERIE [ 2 | ISR » B TIEHN
which covers the content of the workshop. BYRNE o

Mr David Kneebone, IEC
General Manager, discussed
the financial challenges of
working adults with over 120
human resources personnel
and market practitioners in
the seminar about financial
wellness programmes.
REEBHE POBLIBTEE
SEHEERANKRETEE
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The IEC collaborated with tertiary institutions to provide
credit-bearing personal finance modules.

HMBREZEAERRIRHRGR D NEARMET -

Working adults R AT
(=11 . . - _
As income earners for their families, BAREKESHNEBAL  EEHRES
ra working adults require the ability and MELEEHERENTERE - £558
— T confidence to make informed financial F0EEBA LTI REEEDABE A+
decisions. Among the more than 3.5 million FEERR A+ BTEY S RIE SRS 5155
working adults in Hong Kong, we have EEA S BRI o R EIE Y s

identified two groups with distinct financial
education needs as high priority target segments. These two
groups include new-to-employment working adult who must deal

HENENEE - RENFEETRIKES
RELH RSB TR PR or 45 -

with financial matters associated with being employed for the first BIER MRS  BEERALHRITER
time, and pre-retirees in need of skills to plan ahead for the F?E’\Jﬁﬁ%ls_ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ%*ﬁ_’y}z—kii%fﬁﬁ%
financial challenges of retirement. S . o
nand g ! BHYEMMNTHERE  GEERILE
In a survey conducted by the IEC, we found that over half of EEFREEEBAANK -

working adults feel varying degrees of financial stress. In addition,
a quarter claimed financial stress affects their performance at work,

waagasn2015-16 5% CNIIEN



Targeted Education Programmes
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and some even admitted they had to take leave so they could deal
with personal financial matters.

Although many countries have introduced financial wellness
programmes in the workplace, few working adults in Hong Kong
have the opportunity to learn about managing their earnings or
how to prepare a retirement fund.

In October 2015, we introduced financial wellness programmes as
an employee engagement strategy for the first time to over 120
human resources professionals and market practitioners. The
response from the participants has positive, and many employers
said they were keen to know more about the programme.

We also piloted a workplace financial wellness programme for
over 100 HKT employees who are retiring in the next few years.
We offered this half-day workshop addressing the financial needs
of pre-retirees along with a one-on-one financial consultation
session provided by Certified Financial Planners®™ of the Institute
of Financial Planners of Hong Kong. We also worked with

The Chinese University of Hong Kong to evaluate changes

in participants’ levels of knowledge, attitudes, confidence

and behaviours towards retirement planning to help us improve
the programme.

In addition to pre-retirees, we also collaborated with employers and
industry associations such as the Construction Industry Council to
develop programmes for young employees.
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Retirees

With a relatively low level of financial
literacy and the desire to increase their
income, some retirees can make unwise
investment decisions or even become
victims of scams. The IEC joined forces with
various organisations to offer financial
programmes to address this large and growing segment of society.
One of these initiatives is the Senior Police Call (SPC) Scheme of
the Police, with whom we launched the Senior Police Call Wealth
Management Anti Scam Ambassadors (SPC Ambassadors)
Programme. Under this initiative, a group of SPC members received
training in wealth management and scam prevention provided by
the IEC and Commercial Crime Bureau respectively. Twenty-two
SPC Ambassadors graduated from the programme and will share
what they have learned with other SPC members and participants
of other community events targeting senior citizens. The programme
is expected to benefit the ambassadors as well as their families,
peers and the community.

m Investor Education Centre Annual Report 2015-16

BIRATL

BoRAATHESHEBEINEBRAES - BF
FERMBPANERT » FESEHFENIR
BRAR  EERARENZEA - BRRIL
BMETEEEBSHSRIZINED - UES
EEANEE - ARV EDEEBREES N
[EREH] M ELEVHRERAMAA
. BB [EREN ] SEEZHARM
NMEEFRAEN D BIRENY EEENE R
HBEVIEI - 227 [ EREMPRRFIA
EEEIRE - KECEINNHEHBES
DE - HHTEHEAREMROLEED -
B2 A T BRI AR o S5t ETME
TERMAAGE  FEERMAPVRA - BE
BERIME -



A workplace financial wellness programme piloted by IEC offered
one-on-one financial consultation sessions.

RMABNBSHBERS - REE—H—NEANEIBARSE -

the laun

As poor health and inadequate medical benefits can have a
substantial impact on the financial wellbeing of retirees, we
developed a series of messages reminding them of the financial
implications of these and other age-related issues. The messages
act as a preliminary to a more comprehensive programme, in the
form of a series of workshops, piloted with the New Territories
West Elder Academies Cluster, covering most of the key financial
issues faced by retirees. To create stronger resonance among the
participants, sharing of experience by retirees about the impact of
desirable and undesirable behaviours and attitudes on their
financial wellbeing are included in the programme.

More partnerships to extend our reach

To maximise resources and extend the reach of our education
initiatives, the IEC will continue to explore collaboration opportunities
with key stakeholders and community partners to roll out more
parenting workshops. We also plan to extend education programmes
for tertiary students to more colleges, as well as launch more
employee engagement and train-the-trainer programmes.

Over 600 Senior Police Call members joined

Wealth Management Anti Scam Ambassadors
Programme held by the IEC and Police.
BRMEZES S [ EHEHHRRA L 860012
[ELEN | S8 HFETENMEER -

Senior Police Call Wealth Management Anti
Scam Ambassador, Mr Sze Kwok Hin, shared his
knowledge during a seminar.
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ch event of the Senior Police Call
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campaigns and initiatives.
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Education Campaigns and Initiatives

To promote awareness of financial literacy in Hong Kong,
the |IEC makes use of various communication channels,
including mass, digital and social media platforms, to reach
out to the general public with our financial education

RIESEETRENSMIZM MBS  REEHEDLEBT
REERENEEARERESRENHE - ETPEEAREE

We believe that financial education should not only meet the
needs of our target audiences at various life stages but also help
them manage their finances when changes occur in the financial
markets. Over the year, Hong Kong saw greater market volatility,
increasingly closer connections with the Mainland market, and
rising public concerns about borrowing and investment scams.
To keep the public abreast of the latest market developments,
the IEC launched a variety of campaigns and initiatives through
different media, in addition to motivating the public to acquire
financial knowledge and skills through self-learning.

Figure out your Finances
calculators campaign

We encouraged the public to use our financial calculators to plan
and manage their finances proactively through a multimedia
campaign, Figure out your Finances, which ran from July to
August 2015.

The comprehensive suite of user-friendly, interactive financial tools
promoted in this campaign helps the public to plan, review and
manage their personal finances more effectively. The tools include

seven online calculators, downloadable budgeting worksheets, and
a mobile application for expense tracking, all of which are available

free of charge at the website.
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The campaign addressed four key knowledge and capability gaps,
namely, goal-setting and budgeting, debt management, retirement
planning and financial planning, with relevant examples that help to
engage the public.

Recognising that the use of online media has become widespread,
we employed integrated social media and mobile platforms for the
first time, with testimonials from popular online bloggers who
shared their experiences using our calculators.

We also publicised the availability of our education materials and
calculators in various media, including news, finance and leisure
sites, lifestyle media portals and apps as well as print ads in
popular daily newspapers and lifestyle and entertainment
magazines.

Press releases, interviews, feature stories and contributed articles
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these channels, we promoted the campaign through the newsletter,  www.gov.hk RIZt &5 - HBFNHBEABRH
the HKSAR Government’s website www.gov.hk, and websites M E—SHEERENE R UL IERN

targeted to the finance, community and education sectors. B o
This integrated multimedia campaign has significantly raised
awareness and the usage of our calculators. We recorded an
overall rise of 85% in total page views, while page views for the
calculators page rose 35% as compared with the period prior to
the campaign launch.
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Digital, mobile and print media played key roles in raising
awareness and promoting usage of the interactive tools.
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Vivid examples by popular bloggers helped bring to life the value
of our interactive calculators and other financial planning tools.
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Education Campaigns and Initiatives
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Posters featuring the
message “Beware of
mortgage and
borrowing traps” were
displayed at public
housing estates.

BATRBr R IBE R BART |
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More importantly, we saw dramatic growth in the usage of the
interactive tools. The Money Tracker app, for example, recorded a
more than 50% increase in accumulated downloads, while the total
usage of the seven digital calculators recorded a rise of 103%.

Smart borrowing education campaign

In response to growing concerns about cases of hefty fees associated
with property mortgages and refinancing, we launched a campaign
warning the public about promises made by finance companies or
calls by finance intermediaries that sound too good to be true.

The campaign also urged the public to be wary of cold calls
claiming to be from bank staff, letters with logos similar to the
Housing Authority, offers of low-interest loans, or help with debt
restructuring and mortgage loans with no proof of income.

In collaboration with the Housing Authority, in December 2015

we displayed posters at public housing estates to alert residents
about mortgage and borrowing traps. As of March 2016, the
campaign had reached about 1,200 rental public housing blocks
and 278 Tenants Purchase Scheme (TPS) blocks, covering over
800,000 households. The posters also featured a QR code that led
to messages reminding the public to consider certain key issues in
loan advertising.
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Our seminar in July attracted a large audience interested in
learning more about investing in mainland China.
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Money Smart video series with nowTV

As financial markets became volatile in the second half of 2015,
we collaborated with nowTV to produce eight financial education
videos entitled Money Smart.

The series, which featured IEC Chairman Professor Leonard
Cheng, provided practical money management tips on interest
rates, inflation and renminbi movements for people at different
life stages.

To remind the public to consider the financial impact of an
anticipated interest rate hike, we ran articles in various print media
and additional educational messages in key digital media such as
our website.

The Money Smart series was a major departure from our previous
TV collaborations. By using shorter video segments and relating
money management to people’s day-to-day and key life events, we
sought to engage the public more effectively.

Managing the risks of investing in
mainland China

Following the introduction of the Mutual Recognition of Funds (MRF)
agreement between mainland China and Hong Kong in May 2015,

we launched a campaign to introduce the key features of this scheme.

The MREF, an initiative of the Securities and Futures Commission
and the China Securities Regulatory Commission, allows eligible
funds from the Mainland and Hong Kong to be distributed in both
markets. Together with Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect, MRF
not only gives investors a broader choice of investment channels
but also greater exposure to the risks associated with the Mainland
capital market and the renminbi exchange rate.

The campaign addressed gaps in investors’ knowledge about

the Mainland market through a series of expert video interviews
namely, Know more about Mainland investments. By using
animation to aid explanation, the interviews covered Mainland
investing in a lively and easy-to-understand manner. Broadcast

on the IEC website and our dedicated YouTube channel, the videos
were supported by promotions on leading portals, financial news
sites and ad networks in January 2016.

In addition to the videos, we developed new content on our website
and placed related articles in our regular newspaper columns and
in Choice magazine to explain how investors can manage risks and
volatility in markets across Hong Kong and the Mainland.
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Education Campaigns and Initiatives

BEEH

Seminar on China’s investment outlook

In July 2015, we partnered with the Hong Kong Society of Financial
Analysts to hold a public seminar on investing in the Mainland.
Market experts shared their expertise on the impact of the One
Belt One Road strategy, long-term investment in China and the
implications of government investment in infrastructure. Attracting
a total of 280 participants, the seminar was supported by a post-
event newspaper advertorial in order to reach a wider audience.

Financial education for retirees

Managing money wisely and building a sufficient retirement fund
are critical for a worry-free retirement. To encourage retirees to
keep an eye on their savings and manage their money effectively,
we produced a 26-episode radio series in collaboration with Radio
Television of Hong Kong (RTHK). The series was part of an
education programme produced by RTHK in conjunction with the
Elderly Commission.

Topics ranged from money management and investment to credit,
debt, wealth protection and estate planning. The programme aired
from March to August 2015 on RTHK Radio Five, a channel
dedicated to the elderly.

Once Upon a Dime now on DVD

In early 2015, the IEC and RTHK completed the production of
Once Upon a Dime, a series of eight videos using real-life stories
that showcased the importance of money management. Afterwards,
the videos were distributed on DVD to schools in order to bring
these stories into the classroom.

Addressing women'’s financial needs

As women have longer lifespans and often less time to accumulate
savings while in the workforce, they face a unique set of financial
issues and challenges. To reach women, we provided support

for a money management radio programme aimed specifically at
this audience.

As part of the Capacity Building Mileage Programme offered by
the Open University of Hong Kong, the programme was produced
in collaboration with the Women’s Commission and Metro
Broadcast Corporation Limited. IEC speakers shared tips and
advice during the programme, including financial planning, smart
spending, evaluating financial health, retirement planning and
teaching children about money.
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Women ambassadors e 2 IR B K E

During the year, we also encouraged women to become money FRy o RPHERESZISESSE SEEL
management ambassadors in the community. In collaboration with EIHENERAE - RFKRTHRENEL
the Family Planning Association, the IEC provided financial tips e s EERIES  flNE T RS .
such as having a regular savings plan and seeking professional ERERTH ARHERWES - B EHE
advice before making investment decisions. We also promoted our NEROHEAER A S TE » Baaw

interactive Financial Health Check tool, which provides a free
analysis report and an action plan outlining key areas to help
women improve their financial situation.
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Alerting consumers to fraudulent L
investment schemes EHHEENORE TR

In the past year, the Hong Kong Police received numerous reports BREBELFRESREBRAFROE

about fraudulent investment schemes. To help combat these o BT HIESITRUFZRT - KAH Hﬁﬁ
crimes, the IEC collaborated with the Commercial Crime Bureau HKERFBERN2015F8A ﬁl“—%ﬁhﬁ

in August 2015 to help raise awareness through the press. Through ~ HIBTER =G o HAFIREM P SR ER M 42

this collaboration, we provided tips and advice to keep investors FOBEREERESZE  URRERE B#
from falling prey to investment scams. We also reminded the public ~ YWiZEMMHREFREAK » 1552 EBER
to beware of investment plans with unrealistic returns, especially %« SRRV E 2B EATREEMEM © TR
those claiming a low level of risk and a quick yield as well as to = DIREEHIRERENESRE TREN
investigate any intermediary on their own before committing to a AMEE o

major investment.
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In addition, the IEC Chairman promoted these tips through Police BERI G B E A A EUE EIEE B rgé J

BAaA
Magazine in February 2016, a TV programme jointly produced by s .
ahfal v [0 AR SmZEA ©
the Police Public Relations Branch and RTHK. BR - AARRRLRAN
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IEC Chairman Professor Leonard Cheng gave an interview
about financial scams on Police Magazine TV programme.
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Equip
yourself

for future

challenges
EHEED WERE

($
$10.700 g

is the median income of
people aged 15-24*
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R HE10,700"
4 )
When you first enter the workforce, the EMRARBALEIE  F—RKE
urge to spend your entire pay cheque TERTELENEGS - FF—1F 8

can be enticing. Now is the time to start
thinking about your future and avoid
the temptations to overspend resulting
in a heavy debt burden. By learning
more about financial planning, you can
manage your money better and start

N
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saving to meet the challenges of later life.

* Census and Statistics Department, The Government
of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region 2014
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Effective Content and Resources

ERATRALER

working adults, pre-retirees and retirees.

N

Content management plays a critical role in determining
which messages are most effective for our audiences.
We have therefore prioritised the content and resources
aimed at our different target groups, including families
and teachers, tertiary students, new-to-employment

AREEHNBFIRETEEEH X REAKR - BEE
BARER - Bt - PIEETAES EREAREMBERNS
MEBRFIETRXF - ELEABRERE - #6 - KES
£ IBEABSGRRFA - BEERATMEIRAL -

Our research has shown that many people see finance and money
management as daunting topics in which they have little interest.
Accordingly, we must develop content and resources that are
engaging, lively and interactive to ensure we get our messages
across. This is especially true in today’s digital world and the
change in the way people absorb information from traditional
text-based educational content.

Our new website, which was launched in April 2016, serves as a
major resource and online tool for the general public and our target
groups to learn about financial education. As well as a facelift
integrating our new financial educational platform, The Chin Family,
the website features practical, relevant and user-friendly

content presented in a way that our audiences find meaningful

and interesting.

At the same time, the site offers more dynamic and interactive
content, such as case studies and conversations with investment
experts, through the use of videos, infographics, animation and
illustrations to complement text.

Other features of the site include a more user-friendly interface,
better navigation and information architecture, an improved search
function, and a responsive design for easy access by mobile users.
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Focusing on life events to drive
behavioural change

As people tend to be more receptive to information they find
relevant to their own lives, we wanted the content of our new
website to be focused on key life events. This, we believe,

will be instrumental in advancing responsible financial behaviour
in the community.

Around 50 topics have been included to cover one’s entire life
journey, including a pocket money guide for children, young
people’s first credit card, graduation and the start of work, working
holidays, getting married, setting up a home, having a baby, and
planning for retirement.

The information and guidance provided on the new site will help
people to make more informed decisions, manage their money
wisely and plan for their future effectively.

Our new website launched in April 2016 is
integrated with our new financial education
platform, The Chin Family, to deliver user-centric
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Information and guidance built around life events
across one’s entire life journey encourages
people to make behavioural change.

BE5 AL RRR AR L EE RS ERMES

SEARBEYTA °

B cTEe PEERIE CEESEs

EANERVE EMETEH

RAEHEF 0201516 F



. Effective Content and Resources
BMABTRALER

Enhanced presentations and tools

Videos and infographics

During the year, we produced documentary-style videos to bring
the content of our website to life and appeal to different audience
groups. For example, videos targeted at new-to-employment
working adults or pre-retirees and retirees made use of case
studies, experience sharing and short dramas so that viewers can
easily relate the messages to their own lives.

We also made use of infographics, now being widely used in print
and online, to present data, patterns/trends and hard knowledge in
an interesting, lively and reader-friendly way.

Interactive calculators

Additionally, we developed a series of online and mobile tools to

help users manage money and plan their wealth in keeping with our

practical approach to financial education. These interactive tools
comprise online calculators covering debt management, achieving
saving goals, cutting-back on expenses, calculating net-worth,
budgeting, retirement planning and a financial health check as well
as a mobile application for expense tracking.

In early 2016, we introduced the Laisee Money Budget Planner to
help parents teach their children how to develop a budget, allocate
laisee money into savings, spending and making donations.

8 Laisee Money Budget Planner
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The Laisee Money Budget Planner helps
parents teach their children on how to make
the best use of their laisee money.
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Tips and advice

Investment continues to be one of the most popular sections of our
website. However, for some lay investors investment information
can be difficult to understand (especially financial jargon and
complicated concepts). On the new website, we have added

short introductory articles that allow readers to gain a quick,
simplified overview of financial products before proceeding to more
detailed information.

During the year, we also continued to enhance the content of our
website with a number of new topic areas and features:

How to choose an intermediary — We reminded investors about
the dos and don’ts of choosing brokers and provided tips on dealing
with them.

Online security — We alerted investors about the importance of
protecting themselves when trading online and provided online
security tips.

Stock investing for the elderly — We provided information and
advice on the risks of stock investing, such as unexpected liquidity
risk in the case of a prolonged stock suspension. We also included
useful investing principles that can help minimise investment risk.

Investment-linked assurance scheme — As part of our ongoing
monitoring of developments in the market, we continued to
introduce new content and resources as needed. For example, in
2015 we updated our How to read Product Key Facts Statements
booklet and Understand Investment-linked Assurance Schemes
and the regulatory measures booklet on our website with the latest
regulatory changes.

Continually improving resources

In the year ahead, we will continue to enhance our site content and
resources to ensure they address the specific needs of our target
audiences. Beyond this, we will monitor market developments and
assess knowledge gaps in the community so we can develop
content that is effective in driving behavioural change and helps the
public to improve their financial wellbeing.
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Prepare for
a new life QO

together J)
EIRAE B RER 31.2229.1

the median ages of men and women
for the first marriage™

BLAREBERPNVE
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Getting married is one of life’s happiest HERANEREENEZZ— -
moments. However, many couples don't A TFEREHLIERBRERER
plan financially for the occasion or beyond. EEEFIE ENGTEIREZH - B8
High wedding costs and different personall WIEEEE  MEFEMNEAEES
spending habits could put pressure on 18 - AJREEIETIE R IZ B A BT R ) o
your marriage once the honeymoon is over. SEUF VIS IR AV H o —{EIEE 52 2 i B
One of the keys to a successful marriage BRE > AERNEERIEER

is to be financially well-prepared and DREEENEEZEL LR -
preventing money issues from straining

* Census and Statistics Department, The Government
your I’elationship, of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region 2014
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Cross-sectoral Collaboration

BBl E1F

On 27 November 2015, the IEC announced the launch of the
Hong Kong Strategy for Financial Literacy (HKSFL), the first
strategy in Hong Kong to address the financial education needs
of the community. Building on a public consultation, stakeholder
workshops and international best practice, the Strategy provides

HREE | ([FBERE]) - 5=

a practical framework for actions to be taken across the
Government, finance, education and community sectors.
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Efficiency through synergy

To lay the groundwork for the HKSFL, we undertook a thorough
audit of the existing financial education initiatives in Hong Kong and
took into consideration international best practices. Our research
revealed that there were a total of 661 financial education initiatives
offered by 232 organisations during the three-and-a-half year period
from July 2011 to January 2015.

With such a large and diverse range of financial education
initiatives, the introduction of the HKSFL will be instrumental in
helping to establish an effective mechanism to achieve common
objectives among stakeholders offering financial education.

market developments.

[BERKE | EEREEXTERFREE
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E E We hope this holistic strategy will address the various financial
education needs of Hong Kong people and raise their awareness
of financial education as a lifelong learning process so they are
empowered to make informed and responsible decisions for
themselves and their families, while coping with ever-changing
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Mr T C Chan, Chairman of HKSFL Steering Committee
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In terms of investor education, since the global financial crisis
in 2008, governments across the world have realised that retail
investors have inadequate financial knowledge. At the same
time, as a social policy, we encourage citizens to have
responsible attitudes in reviewing their long-term retirement
plans. We will also promote education in this aspect so that

people can manage and accumulate their wealth.

MREEHRE E-TZ/\FRESAMLHKE  2RNBUTHER 9 9
F-RREEHREDVBALRZH - HILER - FA—ExS
BE  ERMBTREEECHEREAANRERKNETNEE -

FHETHEFENAR  FhREEER
REBCHHE -

Professor K C Chan, Secretary for
Financial Services and the Treasury
MREBREBRRRRIBHER

Taking a coordinated approach will also help to achieve synergy
and make the best use of resources to improve the reach and
effectiveness of current initiatives. What’s more, it will complement
measures already in place for protecting financial consumers

and promoting sound market practices that contribute to

financial stability.

Stakeholder and public engagement

We carried out six stakeholder workshops and a public consultation
in June and September 2015 respectively to assess the financial
education needs of the community. Around 100 leaders from the
Government, finance, community and education sectors as well as
financial education practitioners participated in the workshops.

Feedback from this exercise confirmed the necessity for a
coordinated financial literacy strategy and provided valuable
insights on the development of the HKSFL.

Financial Competency Framework

To implement the HKSFL, the IEC has launched the Hong Kong
Financial Competency Framework to help establish financial
competencies for the public to emulate and for organisations to
utilise when developing their financial education initiatives. We
appointed a research team from the Hong Kong Institute of
Education to collate inputs from a diverse range of stakeholders,
including financial institutions, financial education providers,
academics and school educators, in order to develop the
framework. The framework identifies the knowledge, skills,
attitudes, motivations and behaviour required for financial literacy
at different life stages. It covers a wide variety of financial topics,
from basic understanding of money to investing and planning for
retirement, for different age groups and segments of society.
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Cross-sectoral Collaboration

BRBIEHE

Roadmap for success I EE B

Our vision for the HKSFL is to empower the people of Hong Kong [EB%ER | WEESEREETRABEN
to make informed and responsible financial decisions for RAMEHERENESENIIERE -
themselves and their families.

EMBNBERES  ERR=FHEETHED

To achieve this vision, we will concentrate our efforts in three SIEERE
strategic focus areas over the next three years: B

1. EEEREMBRBENTE
EMRTRARREBSHENHENEE
o EBHEEZ -SERAAEREBLS
RMEBHHEH— D HORHE  SEER

1. Raise awareness of the benefits of financial education

One of the core actions for creating greater awareness of the
importance of financial education in society is to have all parties
interested in supporting financial education participate in

Hong Kong Money Month, which takes place around the B A RBITN I BREMA -
Chinese New Year.
2. WMBEKSE

2. Extend opportunities to learn BTHBRARTE - BRI BIMBRRN
To put our vision into action, we intend to enhance financial NERETHE  BKErIEMEIEER
education in schools by embedding the knowledge and skills laid B & RhEE B A AN BB » A GRINEED
out in the Financial Competency Framework into non-curriculum oo BEINEMEEE  HARERBRES
activities. Achieving this will require mapping the required levels B A FTEm E5 A3 BE K2 o b4 - TR AP
of knowledge and skills into the curriculum as well as motivating NEEEEETES WM ERERR -
employers to consider the financial wellness of their employees WA TR Fris it E Bhee o

and to provide learning opportunities in the workplace.

=+ /A > 77 AN
3. Enhance coordination and collaboration among 3. iS5 13 = 2 BHI B AN S AF
stakeholders RTREBRBEE  BMEEMRE=]E
TRIEE AR GE HiRiE - BIFDET®
BRBREM TR o o RMEEYT
TRELERE  BEDED ZEMM

To promote cross-sectoral collaboration, we will organise a
second financial literacy forum to discuss key issues and potential
strategies. In addition, we will create a central online repository

where stakeholders can share information and resources. We BR - FRERIZAER - USRBE R
will also continue providing grants to encourage financial literacy ERIZHARAEE D EITHE - SIRE
research, stimulate wider interest and promote partnerships B2 EBA MR e RIE M BB £ B
between financial education practitioners and academics. B R ZENEE -

Forty sector organisations and industry associations have pledged their participation
as HKSFL Supporting Organisations to help promote financial education to the general public.

AOEFTEAAB R MBAGEIED [ TR R | (S - —REDERENHENTE-
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Governance structure

Having effective governance in place will be integral to the success
of the HKSFL. It will ensure that partners are brought together to
work collaboratively, that the outcomes of the Strategy can be
critically assessed, and that direction and momentum can be
maintained to achieve real success.

A two-tiered governance framework has been established to take
the Strategy forward.

A Steering Committee comprising senior representatives from
partnership sectors will act as the guiding authority. This Committee
provides overall direction for the HKSFL and is responsible for
reviewing and improving the Strategy on an ongoing basis.
Sub-committees for each of the identified strategic focuses will

be formed to act as a think tank and implement core actions.

HKSFL Steering Committee
[ERESMEBMAEMEE DR EEE8T

BEORRIE

[ERRE NEERIAZERHE —BEMH
ERRE  BETEARRSEBHELISE
B EEE [ EBRE | RR - BRES
BRAOME D - HMEBRAR -

RTHAIBBRE ]| OAEE - AT
BEANERRE -

HERNERMRERNWIEEZESSHERR
BRAOM > YESFERNARE [HBX
Bl MAZERRISREEEAR  UES
FRERNETIH -

N7/

Chairman /&

CHAN Tze Ching, Ignatius R ¥

AUYEUNG Pak Kuen, Rex B A

FANG Meng Sang, Christine 7 8%

KNEEBONE, David Phillip Z={&1%

Members £Z&

LAU Sio Kuan, Vivian 24>

LEE Kam Wing, Bruno Z=§3%&

LO Wai Pak, Weber EZ

Dr MAK Sui Choi, Billy ZFZ4 E+

HKSFL Sub-committee on Raising Awareness of the Benefits of Financial Education

[EEEmIEM DR | ERNMIZET

Chairman £f&

LEE Kam Wing, Bruno Z=§34%

Deputy Chairman glEf#

LO Wai Pak, Weber E&#

CHIU Kit Fun 2%
FONG Po Kiu H RS

HO Chui Ping fa]225%

LAM Man Ling, Manning #3384

Members £Z&

LEE Lai Kuen, Shelley ZE 15

LEUNG Yi Lin, Pamela R4

SIU Sai Wo #&EttEF0

SZETO Kwong Chiu F#£E#|

Secretary W& KWOK Lai Yin ZEE

pazEgss0201516 5% N



Cross-sectoral Collaboration

BRBIEHE

HKSFL Sub-committee on Extending Opportunities to Learn
[EESRIBE AR D R BNBERE MEESE

Chairman £J&

FANG Meng Sang, Christine 75 8%

Deputy Chairman &l=E/E

LAU Sio Kuan, Vivian 24>

Members &

CHENG Pat Leung &=

HUANG Erwin Steve &&E Xk

LEUNG Kwong Sum REZR

Professor LEUNG Seung Ming 288 %#%
PONG Wai Yan, Louis BE#4E1=

POON Yuen Shun, Vincent & iZ

TAI Ming Kee BB &

YIP, Damian 88

YIP Yun Wan, Amarantha Z;#HZE

Secretary W&

KWOK Lai Yin S S

HKSFL Sub-committee on Stakeholder Coordination and Collaboration
[EBERIBRENRFAED K | HOREGRANSENEIZEE

Chairman =&

AUYEUNG Pak Kuen, Rex &5 H%E

Deputy Chairman glEfE

Dr MAK Sui Choi, Billy 24 #+

Members Z&

Dr CHAN Yee Wah RR#&ZEE
CHUNG Lai Kuen ZBB1E

CHIU Lai Man #EX

KUNG Hing See, Ruth 7LE&
LAM Yik Tin, Miranda k258
LAU Pui Ling, Selina 2l{f¥%
LEUNG Tsui Wan 2235

TANG Leung Shun, Gary ¥R B
TSE Yue Hong, Chris % &

Secretary W&

KWOK Lai Yin S S

Guided by the Steering Committee, the IEC serves as the
Secretariat to take responsibility for the overall development and

coordination of the Strategy.
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Ambassadors and Supporting RAE N ST HF 8
Organisations HER RN R [ EBE ] IR
Community support is one of the keys for the success of the — o BTG HA40MER B TR FBIHHER
HKSFL. To date, 40 organisations and industry associations from TEXERMARDZIFHEE - 11IREHEE
various sectors have signed up as supporting organisations. TEIRBINAESRNITHIS [ EBERE ]
Eleven ambassadors from different walks of life have also HOHEESRIEMHANITE o

committed to promote the benefits of financial education.

i
VT

Chan Wing Luk Chui Yuk Ha Sze Kwok Hin Christine Fang Moses Hsiao

BRoK Rz EXE S Bk 8% RIRE

Ambassadors from various sectors
have joined up to raise awareness of
the importance of financial literacy.
They are depicted on videos sharing
stories of their experiences in handling

money and taking on challenges in
David Kneebone Viola Lam Ryan Lau financial education.
FEE IEF] MR

REZERBIOAREIEFESE - MBEHE
o BB AR AR DV EE M - b
BEREREANRSZESNENEER UK
WAE S SRR AR E o

Bruno Lee Shelley Lee Dick Lee

TR g TEYE

Next steps on our journey [ EHBER | HEEER

The launch of the HKSFL in November 2015 is the start of our [HBER | R2015F11 /Y BETEH
journey to increase public financial literacy in Hong Kong. Realising  &#h R4S ASMEHNEFE  HEE
the objectives of the Strategy will be an ongoing process. [EHRER | HEELS R — (B8 REWER o
In the three years to fO”OW, the HKSFL will focus on Creating new Eﬂiﬂiii , FE\}%%%J %’%%EEEE%?%{%%

P erentS @ prrmance s NI By PR  BARE kDL
ve 1o Impr 9. TN P o KHHOBE « RMT—SHBRREHY
second version of the Strategy with even more ambitious goals for (ESEE | Y EHEE . HAE BN
disseminating financial education initiatives in Hong Kong. *! il ?TMEE;&T; R RTEEN

TRHEMHETHEARN

Through the HKSFL, we intend to raise the level of financial literacy

so that all Hong Kong people can enjoy financial wellbeing and RIEEB [ BBRME ] EE%’%@%@@EM
greater security for their future. MBAEENKT  BREERTREEEE

RENIBARRMEBRERARRK

REEHEHPL2015-16 F8 €Y




Research and Evaluation

it sE EdRT (i

evidence base.

\ FRAMELERERANTHEHSE -

We are committed to building an evidence base through
research and evaluation of our education initiatives. Having an
in-depth understanding of our different target segments and
measuring the effectiveness of our work are crucial for
informing the development of these initiatives and building this

KPR EBARMFEHERARELINEB RN T - SEE
BIRRHEERA T BRI 2ERMITIERNKRI - HHlEHE EBER

In building an evidence base, we are guided by the IEC Evaluation

Framework, which encompasses the four components of assessing

education needs, measuring the reach of our initiatives, gauging
perceptions of our work and ascertaining their impact.

During the year, we continued to carry out evaluations of major
initiatives, including consumer acceptance of new education
resources and pilot testing of education programmes. We also
conducted studies to better understand IEC’s prioritised target
segments: tertiary students, working adults, parents with young
children, and retirees. In addition, we strived to broaden our
financial literacy research by participating in international studies
and launching a research grant.

Research initiatives in 2015-16

Benchmarking Hong Kong’s financial literacy level

Together with over 30 countries and territories, we took part in
the OECD International Network for Financial Education Survey
on Financial Literacy and Financial Inclusion. The same survey
instrument was used for a cross-country comparison of financial
literacy levels.

The findings from a 7-question knowledge check showed that while

Hong Kong people are familiar with the concept of inflation and
simple interest, their awareness of risk diversification was not as
strong. Their understanding of the concept of compound interest
was the weakest, with only slightly over half of respondents
answering the question correctly. In line with previous studies, both

the young and elderly showed lower levels of confidence in financial

matters and weaker financial knowledge.

According to the survey, the top financial goal for young people in
Hong Kong was buying their own home, while preparing for

m Investor Education Centre Annual Report 2015-16
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retirement tended to be more of a concern for later life. Only about
one-third of young respondents were confident about their financial
future after retirement.

Findings from this survey and other studies have set a baseline for
measuring the financial literacy level of Hong Kong people. Building
on this survey, we will put in place a tracking study to monitor shifts in
people’s financial knowledge and money habits. The evidence from
the tracking study will further inform the IEC’s education strategies.

IEC grant for research into financial education

Research and evaluation are critical to the development of financial
education, and the IEC is keen to encourage high-quality research
in this subject in Hong Kong. To that end, the IEC has set up an
annual research grant to stimulate wider interest in financial literacy
research among academics and financial education practitioners.

A call for research proposals was announced in November 2015. To
be eligible for the 2015-16 round of funding, research projects must
fall under any of the three areas listed below:

i. Impact evaluation of financial education initiatives
Research that seeks to identify effective and scalable strategies
to promote positive financial behavioural change.

ii. The study of financial decision-making
Research that explores insights into how people make decisions
regarding personal finance, such as the determinants of both
good and bad decision-making and the impact on
future behaviour.

iii. Financial education needs among specific target segments
Research that illuminates financial literacy gaps among
vulnerable groups, such as the elderly, the young, lower income
groups and ethnic minorities.

Seed grants are also available for feasibility studies as a
preliminary step for further in-depth empirical research.

A research grant committee consisting of leading local academics
and financial education practitioners was formed to guide the
establishment of the research grant and assess applications. For
this first round of call for proposals, funding was granted to two
research projects:

e A study of investor motivations and fraud conducted by the
Sociology Department of the University of Hong Kong, with data
of investment fraud cases supplied by the Hong Kong Police Force

» Evaluation of a financial education programme targeting foreign
domestic helpers, a collaboration between Enrich Hong Kong
and the Social Work Department of the Chinese University of
Hong Kong

The next round of call for proposals will be announced in the fourth
quarter of 2016.
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Plan now
for a secure

retirement
SHEEE BRKEE

Most people look forward to their retirement
years as a time for enjoying more leisure,
travelling and being with family and friends.
But how will you meet your expenses when
you stop working? Planning early for your
retirement is ideal as it allows you to build
a bigger nest egg. It's never too late to start
retirement planning — even if you plan to
stop work in only a short time.

60H

is the median age for retirement™

RNFERPABR605

SHABPFRABRBESHE
BHRES  BEIE - ERANBR
B - BEMRFLTE  RBEWA
QN{R) A] DR & 3t 2 S AR R AR 2
BERBETERNEARRRER -
RA LB REARKEERER R
f#fE - AMERSSERFEREFL
T RERBFERAREREAE -

N

* Census and Statistics Department, The Government
of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region 2013

HRBHITHRE BUFSETE 2013



» Working with Stakeholders and Partners

BN ERBHERSF

The IEC seeks collaboration with stakeholders both in Hong
Kong and overseas to gain insights from experts and
improve the delivery of our financial education initiatives
through partnerships that build synergy and extend the
reach of our programmes.

REEHE P OER MBI EBREAE - BEHRN

& - RMERERNBERE £ P =R MANSRETHE
ArE WERHRMEBNEER -

N

In addition to the full support of the four financial regulators, RTESNESRHESEENSE IXE &M
we engage and collaborate with stakeholders such as financial EIS RS - IERTIEEE - IRATHAE / Z0PT -
institutions, NGOs, government bodies/departments, education/ HE /EYKE B/ EEER  BER
training institutions, employee/employer groups, and professional TR %A SERAERISHEHNBRRAE o
and industry bodies. We also seek input from field experts and RS FEUNTEERMNSE  RERSNE
leverage the networks of our partner organisations to enhance MRS B0 48 4R IR S B S B B BRI o
the effectiveness of our programmes. o

. . HhE B & LR T A
Advisory Committee and Groups & B g K/ E
We seek the advice and expertise of various groups in the ﬁﬁ‘irﬁﬁigtﬂ’gﬂa%&?%ﬂ%ﬁli_%%%ﬂ?,%ﬁ
community to assist us in formulating our financial education 7 BEAROFIESRIZMAETE o
initiatives.

BRMERFZAEEEREADEREER -

Through the Advisory Committee and Advisory Groups, we seek THERNEREMAUERESREERE -

input and look for opportunities to collaborate on specific financial
education issues.
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Advisory Committee

Members £8
Name %8

KNEEBONE, David Phillip (Chairperson)
=EE (XRF)

CHAN Kwok Ho (from 24 February 2016)
BREIZ (201642824 A148)

CHAN Lap Tak, Jeffrey (from 20 April 2015)
PRIZ{E (2015445208 18)

CHAN Sung Hei, Henry (from 15 May 2015)
BRE{E (m2015%5815012)

LAU Pui Ling, Selina (from 1 June 2015)
ZIMM3% (m2015%6810 1)

LEE, Roger (from 10 April 2015)
Z=[H[ 58 (2015648108 8)

Dr MAK Sui Choi, Billy

BEIFLE

NG Tze Wai

R¥H

PAN San Kong, Terry

&L

PAU Siu Ming (from 15 May 2015 to 23 February 2016)

i JEER (m201555815A%2016%2423R)

SHEK Kang Chuen
AER

Dr SIU Mei Fung, Gloria
mxBEEL

TSE Yue Hong

BiaE

WONG Koon Shing (from 10 April 2015)
EREAK (m2015F481081)

Alternate members are listed on the next page.
FHEESREFREH -

E=1113
o
k=113

HESS

' Organisation #8418

Investor Education Centre
REEZHA RO

Hong Kong Police Force

EBERE

Hong Kong Securities Association
BERFERS

The Hong Kong Association of Banks
BEBRITLE

The Hong Kong Federation of Insurers
EBRBEHS

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
EBRGREERBRATE

Academia

BiiRAT

Financial Dispute Resolution Centre
TR RO

Hong Kong Investment Funds Association
ERREESNS

Hong Kong Police Force

EBERE

Media

BERAANL

Finance Professional
EEREALT

Institute of Financial Planners of Hong Kong
BRYBRIMES

Consumer Council

HEEZRESS
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Working with Stakeholders and Partners

BERFOERBHRERESHE

Alternate members RHZEE
Name # &

BRYANT, Steve Roger
BER

HO Hing Fai (from 20 April 2015)
{T Y& (201548208 2)

HO Yiu Cheong, Sanly (from 10 April 2015)
R E (mh2015%48108 1)

MAU Ying Yuen (from 20 April 2015)
BHEE (2015548208 8)

SIU Fung Ching
mA=

TAM Ka Wing (from 15 May to 31 December 2015)
SEEFE (f2015%58158%12A318)

TAM Wing Sze (from 20 April 2015)
SEEKES (m2015548200 )

WONG Yuk Loi, James
HEER

WONG Yuk Pil"lg (from 1 August 2015)
EEFE (m2o156881818)
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Hong Kong Investment Funds Association
EBREESNE

Consumer Council

HBEZES

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
EBRGREEMEBRAT

Hong Kong Securities Association
BEBRESENmE

Financial Dispute Resolution Centre
TR D TR

The Hong Kong Association of Banks
BEBRITLAE

Hong Kong Police Force

BBEKE

Institute of Financial Planners of Hong Kong

BRUBRAMES

The Hong Kong Federation of Insurers
EBRREHS
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BHNMAMEEIR2015F10 8 198 B4 ©

Advisory Group: Financial Education for
Schoolchildren

Objective: To advise on the development of financial education
initiatives that equip schoolchildren with financial competencies
as well as teachers and parents who can influence their financial
behaviours. The tenure of the Group started on 19 October 2015.

Members £8

Name ##& ‘ Organisation #8278 Name ##& . Organisation ##% %

Ma Tau Chung Government
Primary School (Hung Hom Bay)
BHEREVL/E (A#E)

YIP, Damian (Chairperson) Investor Education Centre
EEH (XRE)

LEE Lai Mui, Agnes
REZEHBE FEH

The Boys’ & Girls’ Clubs
Association of Hong Kong
EBNEHRE

Dr CHAN Kar Yee, Grace  Education Bureau LEUNG Wing Yee
RRRZEL BER RKkE

Federation of Parent-Teacher

LI, Dora The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking

DING Pak Hei
TH#%

HSIAO Chun Mo
BiRR

KONG Siu Cheuk
SIRRE

KWOK Chi Kay, Peter
BRE

LAU Wing Kam, Vicky
g3k=E

Associations of the Central and
Western District Limited
FHEBRRIMEHSERLA

Ning Po No. 2 College
BRE R

Education Bureau
HER

Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui
BBELE

Investor Education Centre
REEHBEH O

(from 6 November 2015)
ZIFN (192015511 A6H )

WONG, Shirley
=R

WONG Wai Yu, Michael
wiRf

WOO CHAN Tak Chi,
Bonnie
BARRIER

Professor YU Wai Mui,
Christina
SRR

LAM Kit Yung, Stefan
(Secretary)
WERE (E)

Corporation Limited
BB LBELRTARAR

Australia and New Zealand Bank
BLERAT

Hong Kong Association of
the Heads of Secondary Schools
EBHERRE

Committee on Home-School
Co-operation
FEHREREEEEEES

The Hong Kong Institute of Education

BEHEZR

Investor Education Centre
REEZEHEFHL

hNEERIENRABENEANEHER
2015F11A30R &R » RMRLVRAHUT
ZEREFNRIZENERTR -

The tenure of the Advisory Group for Financial Education
Programmes for Schools ended on 30 November 2015. The IEC
would like to thank the following members for their invaluable
support and contributions over the past year.

Members £8

Name #%& ‘ Organisation 8%
KWOK Shing Education Bureau

B BER

LUI Kit STFA Seaward Woo College
(=} BB A A e R R 22
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Working with Stakeholders and Partners
BEBHERBHBEESE

Advisory Group: Financial Education for

Tertiary Students

Objective: To advise on the development of financial education
initiatives that give tertiary students the competencies needed to
manage their own finances with the right attitude. The tenure of

the Group started on 19 October 2015.

Members £

Name ##&

. Organisation #1E&#E

YIP, Damian (Chairperson) Investor Education Centre

Rl (%)

Dr CHAN Yiu Kong
BB

CHU Yau Wing
(from 1 December 2015)
SREIEE (201551281 H#E)

HUI, Vincent
XX F

LAM Lai Shan
REE IR

Dr LAM Po Yan, Pamela
HEEEL

Dr LAM Wai Leung
migREE

LAU Sio Kuan, Vivian
2

The tenure of the Advisory Group for Financial Education
Programmes for Youth ended on 30 November 2015. The IEC would
like to thank the following members for their invaluable support and

REEBHE DL

HKU School of Professional and
Continuing Education
BERBHEEBSR

Working Family and Student
Financial Assistance Agency
ERRERBLEEDERE

The Bank of East Asia, Limited
RGRTHERAR

The Hong Kong Federation of Insurers
BRRBEHE

Li Ka Shing Institute of Professional
and Continuing Education,

The Open University of Hong Kong
BERLRABETENEREBER

The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology
BEREAZ

JA Asia Pacific Limited
JAD KEHE

contributions over the past year.
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CHOW Wan Chi, Vincci
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BB - FAH
B o

Name #&

LEUNG Chun Wa
(from 1 January 2016)
RIBE (201651 818E)

Dr LLOYD,
Alison Elizabeth
REHEL

Dr NG Wai Cheong, Artie
RESEL

SHUM Lun Kwong,
Stewart

(to 30 November 2015)
BHF (220155118308 1)

TSANG Miu Ling
(to 31 December 2015)
E I (Z2015512A31A81k)

Dr WONG Chi Tim
HEEREL

Dr YAN Ting Kwan
mREEL

YAU Kwan Pang
(Secretary)
EREENE (RE)

apyl

NMAWEEIR2015510819A

. Organisation ##8& 8

Caritas Family Crisis Support Centre —
Debt Counseling and Financial
Capability Service

PE OB — EEREVEHERE

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
BBEIRE

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University,
School of Professional Education and
Executive Development
EREIREEXEMBSR

Working Family and Student Financial
Assistance Agency
ERRERBEEDBRE

Caritas Family Crisis Support Centre —
Debt Counseling and Financial
Capability Service

PE OB — ESRIEVEERY

City University of Hong Kong
BB AE

Vocational Training Council
LoE SN

Investor Education Centre
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. Organisation ## &1

Christian Action
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LAU Pui Ling, Selina
glfmie

YUNG Lai Ping
fET
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Advisory Group: Financial Education for
Working Adults

Objective: To advise on the development of financial education
initiatives that enable working adults — especially those who have
recently joined the workforce or are thinking about retirement — to
build wealth and plan for their retirement. The tenure of the Group
started on 1 November 2015.

Members £58

Name # &

YIP, Damian (Chairperson)

Rl (%)

LEE Pik Hang, Betty
FIE

CHING Pui Yuk
BHE

CHOW Wan Chi, Vincci
IS

FUNG Kai Man, David
BRI

LAU Ka Shi
BIEE

Dr LAW Ming Fai, Ben
EUERLT

The tenure of the Advisory Group for Financial Education Programmes
for Grassroots ended on 30 November 2015. The IEC would like to
thank the following members for their invaluable support and

. Organisation #1828

Investor Education Centre
REZEHEF L

Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Authority
BHEMAELTEEER

The Women's Foundation
RLZELE

Christian Action
EEHEITE

St. James' Settlement
EREEHE

BCT Group (BCT Financial Limited /
Bank Consortium Trust Company)
BCT iREERE

The University of Hong Kong
BHERER

contributions over the past year.
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Name ##&

Professor CHAN L.W., Cecilia

REEHE

CHAN Wing Kin
Bk 2

CHOW Oi Ting
AEE

KWOK Chi Ying
Eip

Name ##&

LEUNG Kai Lik
REN

LI Tin Kei, Dave
TRE

PONG Po Lam
FEEH

TO Wing, Christopher
paER

YICK Chi Ming, Frankie
558

YUNG Lai Ping
HEE

CHOI Suk Mun, Anny
(Secretary)
SRS (RE)
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HKFTU Occupational Retraining Centre
THEBEBIIRFP L

Hong Kong Institute of Human Resource
Management
BBANEREESS

Institute of Financial Planners of
Hong Kong
EBUBREMEE

Construction Industry Council
BEREE

Employers' Federation of Hong Kong
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Caritas Family Crisis Support Centre —
Debt and Financial Capability Service
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Department of Social Work and Social Administration, The University of Hong Kong

The Boys’ & Girls’ Clubs Association of Hong Kong
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Hong Kong East Family Development Service Centre, Baptist Oi Kwan Social Service
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Caritas Family Crisis Support Centre
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Working with Stakeholders and Partners

BERFOERBHRERESHE

Advisory Group: Financial Education for Retirees

Objective: To advise on the development of financial education
initiatives for retirees and their spouses so that they are capable
of making financial decisions that allow them to sustain their
desired lifestyle after retirement. The tenure of the Group started

on 19 October 2015.

Members £

Name ##&

YIP, Damian (Chairperson)

E=0 (X5%F) REEHEHL

Professor CHAN Cheung
Ming, Alfred
PRE R

Elderly Commission
REZBEEE

Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
Healthy Budgeting Family Debt

CHAN Fuk Lung

PRIEEE Counselling Centre

RE=ZREREEVFEHZH L

CHAN Man Yee, Grace

BE Service

BEMERBHE

Dr CHAN Mou Fung

REEE LT IR AR AR
HO Mei Yee The Salvation Army
LS et

LI Yan Kit, Sunny

T BEBEAEEE

The tenure of the Advisory Group for Financial Education Programmes
for the Elderly ended on 30 November 2015. The IEC would like to
thank the following members for their invaluable support and

contributions over the past year.

Members Z8
Name # &

FUNG Chui Sim (to 18 July 2015)
B8 (22015978188 1k)

LEE Wah Lun, Rannie
M

LEUNG Kai King
RELEE

LEUNG Yee Mei
REEE

YU Lai Wan
REE
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Investor Education Centre

The Hong Kong Council of Social

Noble Apex Advisors Limited
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Name ##&

TANG Kai Hung
BhELE

TAM Wing Sze

WONG Fan Foung,
Jackson
=&

WONG Lai Choi
=20

YEUNG Ming Yin
iR E

POON Yuen Shun, Vincent
(Secretary)
EZ (E)

Radio Television Hong Kong Radio 5
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Project for the Third Age of Institute of
Active Ageing, The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University
BRETIARERELEEREE MES

Commercial Crime Bureau,
Hong Kong Police Force
EEERENEREAEH

Elderly Commission
RESHKEREE

Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui
Welfare Council Limited
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Happy Retired
LOERFHF

Investor Education Centre
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The Salvation Army Senior Citizens Talent Advancement Project Kwun Tong Centre
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The Hong Kong Association of Banks
BBETAE

Caritas Hong Kong — Services for the Elderly
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The Hong Kong Society for the Aged
BEEREARNE

Caritas Hong Kong — Services for the Elderly

BBREZERE



Research Grant Committee

Objective: To guide the parameters of the research grant and
assess all grant applications in support of the development of
financial education in Hong Kong. The tenure of the Group started
on 1 October 2015.

Members £8

MREBEES

BRE A RENEERMEES - BT
BHFEE  UXKEESREVHENRRE -
ZEETER2015F1081 838 o

Name ##& . Organisation #18 &8
KNEEBONE, David Phillip (Chairperson) Investor Education Centre
ZEE () REZEHBEH L

Professor CHAN L.W., Cecilia
RRERE

Professor CHENG W.W., Joseph

Department of Social Work and Social Administration,
The University of Hong Kong
BRARBHETERLETHRER

Department of Finance, CUHK Business School,
The Chinese University of Hong Kong

= =
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CHAN Sung Hei, Henry The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
RRE BB LDSEZRITEROT

LEUNG T. W., Tracy Children and Youth Services, Po Leung Kuk

REIR RERBREREDFRS

ATKINSON, Adele OECD International Network for Financial Education
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Working with Stakeholders and Partners
BEBHERBHBEESE

International engagement

The IEC collaborates with its overseas counterparts, both through
formal and informal contact, in order to learn from best practices and
exchange experiences. The knowledge gained has considerable
influence on our financial education work.

Two main forums provide us with the majority of our international
collaboration opportunities — the Organisation for Economic
Co-operation and Development (OECD) International Network for
Financial Education (INFE) and the International Organization of
Securities Commissions (I0SCO) Committee on Retail Investors.

OECD International Network for Financial Education

Since its establishment in 2008, INFE has been promoting and
facilitating international co-operation among policymakers and
other stakeholders on financial education issues. The IEC is one
of 240 public institutions from over 110 countries that have joined
the OECD/INFE as full members.

INFE members regularly exchange knowledge and views as part of
their commitment to advancing financial education and addressing
issues such as national strategies for financial education in schools
and for women.

The General Manager of the IEC is the INFE’s co-ordinator for
Hong Kong. He is also a member of current INFE sub-groups
focused on long-term savings and investments for micro- and
small- and medium-sized enterprises. The IEC was also a
participant in the Malaysia-OECD High Level Global Symposium
on Financial Well-being and the Asian Roundtable on Financial
Literacy and Inclusion.

Num>O H gt
Cx OM

Y

The IEC supported the Golden Age Expo & Summit held in January 2016
at the Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre. The event was
organised by the Golden Age Foundation, which advocates a high quality,
active lifestyle for pre-retirees, retirees and the elderly.
REEHBFHFOXBFHESHRESETNRN [EERAREESEE -
ESENREREE ERESF | WES  JERRAKAL - RAALHNRE
k REEREBNRENET - EBN2016F1 ABREBERRERLET
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IEC General Manager Mr David Kneebone at the 32" Asian Bankers
Association General Meeting and Conference held in Taipei.
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I0OSCO Committee on Retail Investors

The main mandates of the IOSCO Committee on Retail Investors
are to conduct IOSCO policy work on retail investor education and
financial literacy as well as advising the IOSCO Board on emerging
retail investor protection matters. The Committee comprises of
representatives from 34 economies, including the Securities and
Futures Commission in Hong Kong.

As a member of the IOSCO C8 Committee on Retail Investors,
the IEC is a prominent supporter of IOSCO’s initiatives. In 2015,
we continued to provide input and contribute to IOSCO
questionnaires and papers on sound practices in investment risk
education, anti-fraud activities and investor engagement. We also
participated in discussions on financial education issues such

as FinTech-based financial services providers and the protection
of vulnerable elderly investors.

In October 2015, the IEC participated in the IOSCO Annual
Seminar Training Programme held in Spain under the theme
Investor Education and Protection: The Major Challenges Ahead.
During this programme, 100 delegates, including 18 speakers and
90 participants from 40 countries, gathered to exchange views on
the challenges for investor education and protection. The seminar
provided an excellent opportunity to gain a broader understanding
of regulatory issues and challenges through the case studies
presented by different countries.

IEC also participated in the IOSCO International Forum for Investor
Education “Global Investor Education” conference held in Malaysia
in May 2015.

Exchanges with partners

In Taiwan, the IEC joined the 32" Asian Bankers Association
General Meeting and Conference held in November 2015, where
we exchanged views on financial education with our counterparts
in the region.

In September 2015, the IEC was invited to participate as a panel
speaker in the Roundtable Seminar on Hong Kong Financial
Education Landscape Research, organised by The Hong Kong
Council of Social Service, during which we provided a progress
update on Hong Kong’s inaugural financial literacy strategy to
community organisations.

We also participated in the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers (HKIB)
Annual Banking Conference as a panel discussion speaker on the
importance of investor education in the transformation of banking
models and channels. In March 2016, we conducted a seminar for
HKIB members on how the banking and finance industry can
participate in and benefit from the HKSFL.

Throughout the year, we continued to host government officials
and academics from mainland China, including the China Banking
Regulatory Commission and China Securities Regulatory
Commission.
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Directors’ Report

EERES

The directors present herewith their annual report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016.

Principal place of business

Investor Education Centre (IEC) is a company incorporated and
domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and principal
place of business at 21/F, Cheung Kong Center, 2 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the IEC are to enhance the understanding
and knowledge of members of the public about the benefits, risks
and liabilities associated with purchasing financial services and
products; to promote understanding by the public of the importance
of making informed financial decisions and taking responsibilities
for those decisions as financial consumers and investors.

Financial statements

The financial performance for the year ended 31 March 2016 and
the IEC’s financial position as at 31 March 2016 are set out in the
audited financial statements presented on pages 66 to 80.

Directors

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

CHENG Kwok Hon, Leonard (Chairman)

CHAN Sun Hung

CHAN Tze Ching, Ignatius

CHENG Yan Chee

CHU Lap Kiu, Carmen (resigned with effect from 26 February 2016)
KNEEBONE, David Phillip

LAU Man Man, Lisa (appointed on 19 October 2015)

LEE Sha Lun, Sheridan (resigned with effect from 19 October 2015)
LI Shu Pui (appointed on 26 February 2016)

NG Ka Shing (appointed on 22 February 2016)

WAN Chi Yiu, Andrew
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Directors’ interests in transactions, arrangements
or contracts

Except for a contract of employment with Mr Kneebone, David
Phillip, no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to
which the IEC, or any of its holding company or fellow subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a director of the IEC had a material
interest subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during

the year.

Auditors

KPMG retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the IEC
is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

CHENG Kwok Hon, Leonard
27 May 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Members of Investor Education Centre

BYRZEMKERREELBEPONKRE

(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)
(EEBTMALNIERERDR)

We have audited the financial statements of Investor Education
Centre (the IEC) set out on pages 66 to 80, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016, the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and the cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the IEC are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the IEC as at 31 March 2016 and of its
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

27 May 2016
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

BEakHEMEEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HZ2016F3A31 AL FE (B : &)

2016 2015
$ $
Note (restated)
Fi=E (E31)
Income YA
Recoveries from the Securities KBS RPEEHER
and Futures Commission 2(d) 53,626,905 47,500,953 ZE2WEIMFRIE
Expenses w0
Premises AR
Rent 2,880,000 2,880,000 e
Rates, management fees and others 448,513 449,017 =i EEERHEAM
Staff costs 4 21,862,290 18,531,954 AEEH
Education programmes 5 25,132,725 21,210,489 HE1ER
Other expenses 6 2,996,197 4,294,521 Hibx
Depreciation 7 307,180 134,972 e
53,626,905 47,500,953
Result for the period before taxation - -  FERAEE
Taxation 3 - = IR
Total comprehensive income for the year - - FEEBREZEAHLE
The notes on pages 69 to 80 form part of these financial E69H EEB0HE MM R A MKRERMN
statements. —Z45 o
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Statement of Financial Position

BB AR 2R

As at 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2016538310 (Ef : BT)

N 2016 2015
Ffi 5 $ $
Non-current assets EREBEE
Fixed assets 7 541,053 106,925 EEEE
Current assets RENVEE
Cash at bank and in hand 17,404,387 7,684,504 RITREFRS
Prepayments and deposits 8 69,941 226,012 EAFRERZRE
17,474,328 7,910,516
Current liabilites rBaE 000
Accrued charges and other payables 9 5,439,682 3,501,441 FEET & AR H T FRIE
Amount due to the Securities and REFFRBPEEBER
Futures Commission 12,575,699 4,516,000 ZEENENIE
18,015,381 8,017,441
Net current liabilities (541,053) (106,925) HEIEEZFE
Total assets less current liabilities - - HBELERRBAE
Net assets - - EE#RE

We have not prepared a separate statement of changes in equity

as there have been no changes during the year.

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

27 May 2016 and signed on its behalf by

CHENG Kwok Hon, Leonard

Chairman Director

The notes on pages 69 to 80 form part of these financial
statements.

KNEEBONE, David Phillip

MR FERERIEER AR - HLERM
WRBRTRAEERZER -
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Cash Flow Statement
HWEREXR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HZ2016F3A31 AL FE (B : &)

2016 2015
$ $

Cash flows from operating activities BETHMCIBNRERE

Result for the year - - FEXE

Depreciation 307,180 134,972 e

Decrease in prepayments and deposits 156,071 326,732 FANRIEREZEEHRD

Increase in amount due to the Securities REBSRHESEKEREZES

and Futures Commission 8,059,699 4,215,612 R FE UR FRE Y 1S 40
Increase / (decrease) in accrued charges FEETE AR H At R FRIE /Y
and other payables 1,938,241 (849,779) #hn / GEisd»)

Net cash generated from operating activities 10,461,191 3,827,537 REHZEZRFNELREEE
Cash flows from investing activities REFZHACIFNEASRE

Fixed assets purchased (741,308) (50,570) BABEEEE
Net cash used in investing activities (741,308) (50,570) HRIEBREZIHNELFEE
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 9,719,883 3,776,967 HE&KZEIELIEEIEINELE
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of

the year 7,684,504 3,907,537 FERBRASRERFSIER
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of

the year 17,404,387 7,684,504 FEARERIESNERIASIER
Analysis of the balance of cash and R RZERRLIEH MR

cash equivalents: SFT:

Cash at bank and in hand 17,404,387 7,684,504 RITREFRE
The notes on pages 69 to 80 form part of these financial £69H EHB0E MM E R A EHMKRERH
statements. — 25 o
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(a

Notes to the Financial Statements

e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(Bfy : %)

Status and principal activities

The IEC was incorporated on 19 October 2012 in Hong Kong
under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance as a company
limited by guarantee and not having a share capital. The
address of its registered office is 21/F, Cheung Kong Center,
2 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the IEC are to enhance the
understanding and knowledge of members of the public about
the benefits, risks and liabilities associated with purchasing
financial services and products; to promote understanding by
the public of the importance of making informed financial
decisions and taking responsibilities for those decisions as
financial consumers and investors.

Under the provisions of the IEC’s Memorandum of Association,
every member shall, in the event of the IEC being wound up,
contribute to the assets of the IEC an amount not exceeding
$10. At 31 March 2016, the IEC had 1 member.

Significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSs), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the IEC is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the IEC. Note 2(l) provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the IEC for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

The IEC has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see
note 15).

(a)
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(b)

()

(d)

Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7% 3R 3% BT &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BEfx : %)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The IEC prepares these financial statements on a going
concern basis notwithstanding that the stated current liabilities
are in excess of the stated current assets at 31 March 2016.
The Securities and Futures Commission (SFC), the ultimate
holding entity, has given an undertaking to continue to provide
such financial assistance as is necessary to maintain the IEC
as a going concern.

We have prepared these financial statements using the
historical cost as the measurement basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors that
we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

We review the estimates and underlying assumptions on an
ongoing basis. We recognise revisions to accounting estimates
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and

future periods.

Recognition of income

We recognise income in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the IEC and we can measure
reliably the revenue and cost.

Recoveries from the SFC

The IEC’s income is reimbursement from the SFC for
expenditure incurred. We recognise recoveries from the SFC
on an accrual basis.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 2. FEEHBE @

(e) Employee benefits (e) EEEF
We accrue salaries and allowances, paid annual leave and RMEESTSN 2N - AEEBERYR
contributions to defined contribution plans in the year in which R B R R 2 2 R IR R 1Y
the associated services are rendered by employees. ERERIRESI RS A o

(f) Fixed assets and depreciation () BEEERITE

We state fixed assets at cost less accumulated depreciation,
which is calculated to write off their costs, less their estimated
residual value, if any, over their anticipated useful lives on a

EEEER UKD REITERBERER
(RHEE2(k)) I - RALESEREE

straight-line basis, and impairment losses (see note 2(k)). We ﬁ%ﬂ’giﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ R A EL AR E ;

use the following useful lives: RANBRA G RIERMEE (NBH9E) et
BiIE - RMERAUTHERHR

e Furniture and fixtures 5 years

 Office equipment 5 years o BRMREE 5%

» Personal computers and software 3 years o WAERME 5%

. . . . o AABRREM 3F
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,

are reviewed annually EENEABRREHSER (0
15E) 19 E R — K -
(9) Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, we consider (9) BAERH
that the following are related parties of the IEC: BAARBSHRENE L - RIS T
(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is FERERFOFRE

related to the IEC if that person: (@) EANGALTHE  EAASR

(i) has control or joint control over the IEC; ERRENBEA R LERIE ¢
(ii) has significant influence over the IEC; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of (i) FEHIREE =5 HEEHA
the IEC or the IEC’s parent. R
(i) HAEPOLEBEANEED R
(b) An entity is related to the IEC if any of the following (i) BAPLHADLZD TN
conditions applies: ITEEWAS o
(i) The entity.and the IEC are members of the .sellme (b) WA THEMEY XS
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and B R
fellow subsidiary is related to the others). o
(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the () HEREAALBER—£H
other entity (or an associatg or joint venture. of. (BEBEHEAT - HEAD
: mimgz:)of a group of which the other entity is AEZMEBASEEEE) -
: (i) —"EBRES—BERNHE

DNAFAELRE (FRE -8
EESEETREATN

BEADRAELE) -

RAEHEFL2015-16 F 8



2.
(9)

(h)

(M)

Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7% 3R 3% BT &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BEfx : %)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(iiiy Both entities are joint ventures of the same

third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the

benefit of employees of either the IEC or an entity

related to the IEC.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence

over the entity or is a member of the key

management personnel of the entity (or of a parent

of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which itis a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the IEC or to the IEC’s parent.

(iv)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand.

Prepayments and deposits

We initially recognise prepayments and deposits at fair value
and thereafter state these at amortised cost less impairment
losses for bad and doubtful debts unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case we state them
at cost.

We measure impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts as
the difference between the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the estimated future cash flows, discounted where
the effect of discounting is material.

Prepayments and deposits and other receivables are loans
and receivables in accordance with the determination in HKAS
39, Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Accrued charges and other payables

We initially recognise accrued charges and other payables at
fair value and thereafter state these at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case we
state them at cost.

Other payables and accrued charges are financial liabilities
measured at amortised costs in accordance with the

determination in HKAS 39, unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Impairment

We review the carrying amounts of the IEC’s assets at the end
of each accounting period to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, we
estimate the asset’s recoverable amount. We recognise in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income an
impairment loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses for receivables whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote are recorded using an
allowance account. When the IEC is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against the receivable directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of the
IEC. Of these, none of the developments are relevant to the
IEC’s financial statements.

The IEC has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 #R R Y =
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BEfx : %)
3. Taxation 3. WiE
(a) No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as (a) ARASFHLIGEERBIRE - Fit
the IEC did not have any taxable profit. W8 E B BRI ER IR BERE o
(b) There is no deferred tax liability or unrecognised deferred (b) A ETMELER IS Ak
tax assets. RRNELER AL °
4. Staff costs 4. NEEH
2016 2015
$ $
Salaries and other benefits 20,916,173 17,753,173  #FHEREMEF
Contributions to defined contribution plan 946,117 778,781 ¥R EMIETBIAIHK
21,862,290 18,531,954
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) RIEE B (D BMEA) 55383(1) R K (A
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the 7 (HBEEEMRER) HE) F2EHR
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of T BEMEKENT -

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

2016 2015
$ $
Directors’ fees - - EEWe
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 1,740,000 1,204,726 FHe EMEEYF=
Discretionary pay 435,000 289,270  BYEHEN
Retirement benefits 87,000 58,500  ERIRFTEIHZX
2,262,000 1,552,496
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Education programmes 5. HFHEH

2016 2015
$ $
(restated)
(E5)
Mass media programmes and campaigns 14,638,435 14,217,234 KE eI KEH)
Website 5,983,791 2,398,037 4k
Marketing programmes (previously known as HATERGS
Outreach activities) 2,531,139 2,504,168 (BIEAIINETED)
Publications 145,200 408,750  FI¥p
Research and evaluation 1,834,160 1,682,300  HFEFIET(L

25,132,725 21,210,489

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the IEC reclassified EBZE2016F3A3THILEFER » A<
research and evaluation expenses grouped under professional DEBEEREEEEREMRKEERAAR
and other services to education programmes to reflect more AT HEN D BEEHEER » B
appropriately the nature and purpose of the expenses. FEREMRMEESHOMER AR -
Comparative amounts in the statement of profit or loss and BRE—3 BEREMEEKES -
other comprehensive income, note 5 and note 6 were restated BIEEER M6 L B S R B 5] o
Sy 1002300 s rdassed 1 o 00 R
P o ' SEEHHER
Other expenses 6. Hitisz
2016 2015
$ $
(restated)
(E=51)
Auditor’'s remuneration 155,150 147,100  Z=EEENS
Professional and other services 1,189,925 1,366,944 EHERHMARKER
Publicity and external relations 347,543 1,336,919 EEREINEHR
Information systems and services 1,021,343 1,025,876 B RLG MR
General office and insurance 171,312 184,104 —RIMAZERZRREER
Training and development 110,924 233,578 iRk ERE

2,996,197 4,294,521

REEHBDL2015-16 £



Notes to the Financial Statements

P RS ER AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BEfx : %)

Fixed assets 7. BIEEE
Personal
Office  computers and
equipment software Total
WAERE EASERRMS st
$ $ $
Cost BRA
At 1 April 2015 8,366 399,898 408,264 20154818
Additions 5,300 736,008 741,308 NE
At 31 March 2016 13,666 1,135,906 1,149,572 20163 A31H
Accumulated depreciation RIRITE
At 1 April 2015 3,346 297,993 301,339 20154 81H
Charge for the year 2,468 304,712 307,180 FEIFE
At 31 March 2016 5,814 602,705 608,519 201653 A31H
Net book value IRERE
At 31 March 2016 7,852 533,201 541,053 20163 A31H
Personal
Office  computers and
equipment software Total
WAERE EASHRERME st
$ $ $
Cost A
At 1 April 2014 8,366 349,328 357,694 201454 81H
Additions - 50,570 50,570 NE
At 31 March 2015 8,366 399,898 408,264 20155F3H31H
Accumulated depreciation 2ENE
At 1 April 2014 1,673 164,694 166,367 M2014F481H
Charge for the year 1,673 133,299 134,972 FERE
At 31 March 2015 3,346 297,993 301,339 M2015%3831H
Net book value IRE R E
At 31 March 2015 5,020 101,905 106,925 720153 H31H
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Prepayments and deposits 8. HEfRIEREZRS

All the prepayments and deposits are expected to be FrETANRIER RS TR E —ERURE o
recovered within one year.

9. BrtEAREMENRIA

FREREE AR E RN RIES AT
All accrued charges and other payables are expected to be —E A

settled within one year.

Accrued charges and other payables

TRAFAPLESTTHBR SRR
BENRGESNIEA - SREEDREY
HARTERERER AP OTREABRER

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities
of the IEC’s current liabilities at the end of the accounting
period, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash

flows and the earliest date the IEC can be required to pay: NEORFAM
2016
More than 3
Within 3 months months but less
Carrying or on demand than 1 year
amount ={EARZIHR =ERA#% Indefinite
IREE IREREERSRM E—FRZEH EEESIE A
$ $ $ $
Accrued charges and FEEtERKREAM
other payables 5,439,682 5,439,682 - - FEFRIE
2015
More than 3
Within 3 months  months but less
Carrying or on demand than 1 year
amount  =1{EAAZIHIR =EA% Indefinite
IREE  REREERFY B—FrEH ERERIH A
$ $ $ $
Accrued charges and FEstE AR EAM
other payables 3,501,441 3,501,441 - - S FRIE

RAEHEFL2015-16 F 8



10.

1.

Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7% 3R 3% BT &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BEfx : %)

Commitment for the use of office premises

According to the licence agreement with the SFC, the IEC’s
total future minimum non-cancellable lease payments for the
six-month early termination notice period are as follows:

10. BARME R 3 2 ERIRIE

REAPOERBESR Y HER R
RPOARRHAEANRELILBHHEA
AN ATREREREESRENT ¢

2016 2015
$ $
Within one year 1,650,000 1,650,000 —F PR

During the year ended 31 March 2016, $3,300,000 (2015:
$3,300,000) was recognised as premises expense paid to the
SFC in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Related party transactions

There are related party relationships with the SFC, the ultimate
holding entity. During the year the company paid $384,000
(2015: $384,000) accountancy service fee, $310,000 (2015:
$305,833) human resources and training support fees and
$768,000 (2015: $768,000) website hosting and maintenance
fees to the SFC. Further, certain expenses amounting to
$56,983 (2015: $991,964) were paid by the SFC on behalf of
the IEC during the year. The IEC has reimbursed the SFC for
these expenses. Directors’ emoluments are disclosed in note 4.

Other than these transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the IEC entered into
no other material related party transactions.
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12.

13.

Financial risk management

Exposure to credit and liquidity risks arises in the normal
course of the IEC’s business. The IEC is not exposed to any
foreign exchange risk as all transactions and balances are
denominated in HKD. The IEC has no interest bearing assets
or liabilities. The IEC manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

The IEC’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash at bank.
Management’s policy is that cash balances are placed only
with licensed banks in Hong Kong with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset in the statement of financial position. In
this regard, the IEC’s credit risk is limited.

The IEC’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 March 2016.

Parent and ultimate controlling party

As at 31 March 2016, the parent and ultimate controlling party
of the IEC is the SFC, which is a statutory body in Hong Kong
and produces financial statements available for public use.

12.

13.
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14.

15.

Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7% 3R 3% BT &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BEfx : %)

Funding management

The funding of the IEC is managed by its parent and ultimate
controlling party, the SFC, which has agreed to provide
continual financial support and adequate funds to the IEC to
meet its liabilities as and when they fall due. The IEC is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

Possible impact of amendments, new standards
and interpretations issued but not yet effective
for the year ended 31 March 2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a few amendments and new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2016
and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be relevant
to the IEC.

14.

15.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
BT B8k 2 %58
e HEER

ExER

AL ETHF AR RKRERE —
RESMEE - BESRERANPLRM
FHENMBREREHANES - LENAE
PONEEREMNRKE - RROLAZHR
EASNERR M EARER o

EAHEREZE20165F3A31H
1 B R ) R AE SR AVEET - #EER
REENTRETE
HEAMBRROTBERY  FBSE
DB AT —EETTURIER - BZE
BRI R # 2R - EEE201653A31H
IESFEEARER - MIEERGHEHRRD
FURA - B BENT AREEARR L
BEAWIEE °

Amendments to HKAS 1,

1 January 2016

(BRETER) F15RAEET

Presentation of financial statements 20165F1H18  BIFEREZHZS
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, 1 January 2016  (EEET%A) 551655 K 55385 HI1ER]
Clarification of acceptable methods of 20161 A1H  BEUEZIITE FI#H 5%

depreciation and amortisation

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

1 January 2018

2018F1H1H

(BBMBIMELER) F95% - £HMTA

The IEC is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments and new standards is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the IEC’s results of operations and
financial position.
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